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Chairman’s Statement
ENN X &y

On behalf of the board of directors (“Directors”) (the “Board”) of
Bestway International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present herewith the annual report of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

RESULTS REVIEW

During the past financial year, the global and the PRC economy
still encountered severe challenges. However, with our innovative,
exploring and development vision, the Group grasped opportunities
and achieved satisfactory results. We achieved a turnover of
approximately HK$1,121,000,000 in total during the year, representing
a year-on-year increase of 146 times.

OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS AND EFFECTIVENESS

During the past year, the Group introduced Tai He Financial
Group Limited as our controlling shareholder. We believe the
introduction of new shareholder will bring new development ideas,
introduce numerous cooperative partners, create new development
opportunities, increase profitability and attract talents. It will also
establish new business models and are favorable to enhancing its
corporate governance. It will greatly expand the development sectors
and market potential of the Company and will definitely bring
substantial benefits to all shareholders.

For our original business, the Group made rational resources
allocation on the basis of maintaining the existing scale of our
medical equipment trading. The revenue realized was approximately
HK$12,890,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 91.3%.
The profit realized was approximately HK$692,000 and turnaround
successfully from losses. For the mining business, by endeavoring to
avoid the potential risks arising from PRC economic slowdown and
the decrease in exports from Mongolia to China, the Group closely
monitored market conditions and considered other options, striving to
bring satisfactory returns to the shareholders of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
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In December 2015, the Group leveraged on the newly recruited
management expertise to conduct our bulk commodity trading
business and the revenue achieved during the current financial year
was approximately HK$1,035,473,000, making substantial profit
contributions. Moreover, the Company further expanded the scope
of its principal business and carried out securities market investment
transactions, whereby achieved business revenue of approximately
HK$72,426,000 and profit of approximately HK$60,362,000
respectively.

On 8 April 2016, the Group commenced the business of distressed
assets investment and management by successfully acquiring
a distressed assets package which including residential and
commercial land and buildings at a consideration of approximately
RMB146,000,000 in an open tender. The transaction enriched our
investment business portfolio.

Opportunities and Challenges

Currently, the global economy still faces downturn risks. With
escalating trade protectionism, the growth of emerging markets and
developing economies continues to slow down. The growth rate of
the PRC economy has entered into an adjustment stage, capacity
transformation and upgrading, de-leveraging, structure adjustment and
facilitating development will inevitably become a new normal state in
the coming period. Despite a decline in the PRC's economic growth,
however, it still enjoys a higher growth when compared to the world
economy. Along with the implementation of the state’s 13th Five-Year
Plan, the facilitation of various reform measures and the exploration of
Internet, not only will they pose challenges to our development, but
will also confer us new opportunities for development and innovation.

A

RZZT—RF+ZA AEBEFNAHSIENEEE
THRTAREMEZEL URAMBRFEER
BIWERWALI10.35473F 8B W HEER T A]
BRI - tAN R RRIE—SIEAEEEBHHE
FRESMIGRER S BREBIWALT 2426
BB BIAFEL6,036.28 8L

RIZB-—XRNEFOANB AEEFRRETITREE
KREREEZRL BEARABENT AR AR
BEHNARK146BTES —AEXEMHERLR
BFTREER ZXFEETARENKREE
BHEE -

B E

A HREHEERARBGE NTER B RE
ITEEMHBE FETEMERTEEBLERS
BHE- PREEEEREECKREAFTESR £
ERE E2ER HEE RERLBKASER R
BHNHEE - BAPELEERAMTRE B
HE2REEMS DAZTERSNER-BE
BRT=ARIMZNER SENEEEORE
#EOURBBENRR  RARMNERELRT
P8 R DE T HRAFRAIF RS-

TE-ABRER

BREBRZERERAA 5 .



Chairman’s Statement
ENN X &y

Outlook

In 2015, the Group continued to enhance our corporate governance,
adjusted our business structure and optimized resources allocation
and achieved certain results. In 2016, in accordance with the strategic
development goal of driving the Group to become bigger, stronger and
better, the Group will continue to intensify our efforts in implementing
our reform and innovation measures, optimize business structure,
enhance resources allocation and attract professional talents. Whilst
conducting the bulk commodity trading business steadily, the Group
will continue to explore the financial businesses such as securities
trading, futures transactions, assets management, money lending
and financing. The Group will continue to enhance the investment
and management of distressed assets business, actively prepare for
the development of the domestic and overseas insurance businesses,
explore and promote the establishment of the China and foreign
investment funds and continue to increase our investments in the
consumer service and financial service sectors, with the aim of creating
greater values for our shareholders, customers and the society.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 are set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

APPRECIATION

I would like to extend my gratitude to the members of the Board, our
management team and staffs for their loyalty and dedication during
the past year. On behalf of the Board, | wish to convey our most
sincere appreciation of the staunch support to our Group from all of
our customers and suppliers and during the year.

Chua Hwa Por
Chairman

Hong Kong, 3 June 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company completed the placing of 205,000,000 new shares at the
placing price of HK$0.88 per placing shares under general mandate
on 6 July 2015. The new shares rank equally among themselves and
with the existing shares. The 205,000,000 new shares represented
about 19.60% of the issued share capital of the Company prior to
the placing and about 16.39% of the enlarged share capital of the
Company immediately after the placing. The net proceeds received by
the Company, after deducting relevant expenses incurred in relation
the Placing, amount to approximately HK$177 million. It is expected
that the net proceeds will be applied towards potential acquisition
activities as identified by the Group from time to time and the general
working capital of the Group.

On 30 November 2015 the Company completed the subscription of
250,180,000 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.66 per
subscription share under General Mandate. The 250,180,000 new
shares represented about 20.00% of the issued share capital of the
Company prior to the subscription and about 16.67% of the enlarged
share capital of the Company immediately after the subscription.
The net proceeds received by the Company, after deducting relevant
expenses incurred in relation to the subscription, amount to
approximately HK$164 million.

The directors believe that the above fund raising exercise provided an
opportunity to broaden the shareholder base and strengthened the
capital base of the Group. The net proceeds of the above mentioned
placing of approximately HK$177 million and the subscription of
approximately HK$164 million were expected to be applied towards
potential acquisition activities as identified by the Group from time to
time, working capital of possible Hui Kai businesses and the general
working capital of the Group.

In view of the recent business development and changes in the
acquisition of Hui Kai, the Board decided to engage in commodities
trading business on a continuous basis and reallocated HK$250 million
out of the total net proceeds HK$341 million as working capital of
commodities trading business. Please refer to the announcements
dated 6 July 2015, 30 November 2015 and 29 January 2016 for more
details.
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CHANGE IN CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Immediately after completion of the acquisition of Shares pursuant to
three share purchase agreements dated 4 February 2016, 11 February
2016 and 15 February 2016. Tai He Financial Group Limited (the
"Offeror”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Chua Hwa Por, a director
of the Company, became interested in an aggregate of 481,680,000
Shares, representing approximately 32.09% of the then entire issued
share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Optima Capital Limited,
on behalf of the Offeror, made a conditional mandatory cash offer
(the "Offers”) for all the issued Shares not already owned and/or
agreed to be acquired by the Offeror and/or parties acting in concert
with it. The composite document on the Offers was despatched to
the Shareholders on 7 March 2016. The Offer was closed on 30
March 2016 and consequently the offeror was interested in a total of
871,643,074 shares, representing approximately 58.07% of the total
issue share and voting rights of the Company.

Details of above were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 15 February 2016, 16 March 2016, 17 March 2016, 30 March
2016 and composite document dated 7 March 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the revenue of the
Group increased by approximately 14,591% to approximately
HK$1,121,247,000 (2015: approximately HK$7,632,000). The gross
profit increased by approximately HK$76,643,000 to approximately
HK$79,727,000 (2015: approximately HK$3,084,000) due to the
commencement of securities and commodity trading business. The
loss before taxation increased by approximately HK$84,036,000
to approximately HK$158,782,000 (2015: approximately
HK$74,746,000). The increase in loss before taxation was mainly
due to the increase in the impairment loss on mining rights by
approximately HK$151,146,000 to approximately HK$217,083,000
(2015: approximately HK$65,937,000) and increase in administrative
expenses by approximately HK$12,799,000 to approximately
HK$23,660,000 (2015: approximately HK$10,861,000). Basic loss
per share for the year was approximately HK8.78 cents (2015:
approximately HK5.20 cents).

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group are principally engaged in (i) trading of commodities and
securities, (ii) distressed assets investment; (iii) mining of tungsten
in Mongolia and (iv) trading of medical equipment business. In the
forthcoming year, the Group would diversify into financial services
business or other investment in the PRC should opportunities arise.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Commodities and Securities Trading

In December 2015, the Group has carried out commodities trading on
a trial basis with a view to observing the potential of the commodities
trading business. During the year, the Group recorded transaction
amount completed was approximately HK$1,035 million, with an
average profit margin of approximately 0.21% (or approximately
HK$2.164 million). Although the margin is thin, the board of directors
of the Company (the "“Board”) values the advantages of trading
of physical commodities being short cycle, large volumes, high
marketability and better risk control. In view of the above, the Board
decided to engage in commodities trading business on a continuous
basis.

The Group invested equity securities listed in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Other Asian Countries as short-term investments. During
the year, the Group recorded realised gains from the disposal of certain
financial assets held for trading amounting to approximately HK$72.4
million.

Acquisition of Distressed Assets

On 8 April 2016 an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the "Purchaser”), the Auctioneer and the Vendor entered into
the Auction Agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed
to acquire, and the Vendor agreed to sell, the Distressed Assets
at the cash consideration of RMB146,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$175,200,000), of which a non-refundable deposit
of RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$21,600,000)
was paid by the Purchaser to the Vendor upon signing of the Auction
Agreement.

The Collaterals are a list of 16 residential or industrial properties
located in Shaoxing, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. The Directors believe
that upon the completion of the Acquisition, the market value of the
Distressed Assets will be enhanced as the uncertainty on the ownership
and mortgagee action has been removed. The Company will seek for
realising the potential capital gain arising from the investment.

Please refer to the announcement dated 12 April 2016 and 5 May
2016 for more details.

FmESZRESHEER

R-T—RF+_f ERAEEYHERESES
CBEERMEAHAENREIER -NAFE
REBESFSETN X HEEEL1,035,000,000%
TL FHEFEL0.21% (31492,164,000/7T) °
BREFBE AQAREEG([E5T])IEE
VERESBEHE EX - RnBES RERZH
BEZED - ER LAl EESRTEHEN
EHRESHEK-

AEBEBRERES FRREREMEBMER L
MZBRAFLFERTHRE - RAFE A& H
BLEETHREEENESRNEEMBBDFEHER
%5 4972,400,000/8 7T °

WBRITREE

RZE—XRNFOANE AAFz—HEE2E
WEAR ([EAH]) HBEARBFLHER
FZBN BFRAEKBENESIRELETRE
E -HeREAARK146,000,0007T (FHE R
#9175,200,0008 L)  EF P AR EZS AR
18,000,0007T (B 7 4921,600,000% ) EHE
FRBREHERERINTES -

QRGN BT AR 6B TR T
WE - EFEERERUEFAL TRAEY
T 8 R 8 M 2 R R M R AR A (T B T
AR R BB BRI AE S BE R AN

%o

EZHEE2HMAEMAS - RNEFNATZHK
TE-XNFRARBZAE-

BHRERZERE R
T— "%




10

Management Discussion and Analysis

o B W e B g B

Mining Business

Same as past years, the Group still holds four tungsten mining licenses
through two wholly owned Mongolian subsidiaries. Kainarwolfram LLC
owns properties under Mining Licenses MV-011863, MV-011027 and
MV-005518, which are located in the territory of Nogoonnuur Soum,
Bayan-Ulgii province and Ikh Uuliin Erdenes LLC owns the property
under the Mining License MV-003506, which located in the territory
of Nogoonnuur Soum, Bayan-Ulgii province. With reference to the
opinion from the Group’s Mongolian legal advisers, the Directors
are of the opinion that the Group is in compliance with all laws and
governmental rules and regulations in Mongolia and the Group's four
mining rights are still in effect and in good standing as at the reporting
date. Meanwhile, the Board re-assessed the recoverable amount of
the Mining CGU as at the end of the reporting period and details of
the impairment assessment are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

Sales of Medical Equipment

In November 2014, the Group started the business of sale of medical
equipment in Mainland China. During the year, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$12,886,000 (2015: approximately
HK$6,736,000) which represented an increase in turnover of
approximately 91.30%. The gross profit margin was retained at around
40%.

Acquisition of Financial Services Businesses

On 29 December 2015, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Purchaser”) entered into the an Agreement to acquire from First
Step Securities Limited and Mr. Lo Kwai Sang Dennis (the “Original
Vendors”) the entire equity interest in Hui Kai Holdings Limited
(“Hui Kai Holdings"), which has four major operating subsidiaries
namely Hui Kai Securities Limited (“Hui Kai Securities”), Hui Kai
Futures Limited (“Hui Kai Futures”), Hui Kai Asset Management
Limited (“Hui Kai Asset”), and Easy Winning International Limited
("Easy Winning"), which are principally engaged in Type 1 (dealing in
securities) activities, Type 2 (dealing in futures) activities, Type 9 (as set
management) activities under the SFO, and money lending business,
respectively (the “December Acquisition”).

The Purchaser, the Original Vendors, and Hui Kai Holdings have
agreed to change the December Acquisition to the effect that the
Purchaser will first acquire from Hui Kai Holdings three operating
subsidiaries (namely Hui Kai Futures, Hui Kai Asset Management, and
Easy Winning), and in the meantime has an option to acquire the
entire equity interest in Hui Kai Holdings for 12 months. Accordingly,
the Termination Agreement, the New Agreement, and the Call Option
Deed were entered into by the parties on 18 January 2016.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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On 18 January 2016, the Purchaser entered into the Termination
Agreement with the Original Vendors to terminate the December
Agreement, and separately entered into the New Agreement with
the New Vendor (being Hui Kai Holdings) to acquire the entire equity
interest in the Target Companies for an aggregate consideration up to
HK$56 million, which will be settled by way of cash. The acquisitions
of Hui Kai Futures, Hui Kai Asset Management, and Easy Winning
are not inter-conditional on each other. Upon Completion, the Target
Companies will become wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
and vehicles for engaging in financial services business in Hong Kong.
On even date, the New Vendor also granted the Purchaser the Call
Option at a premium of HK$1 under the Call Option Deed. The Call
Option gives the right to the Purchaser to acquire the entire equity
interest in Hui Kai Holdings for a consideration up to HK$120 million
within 12 months from the earlier of the date of Completion or 1
July 2016, subject to certain conditions precedent. Please refer to the
announcements dated 29 December 2015, 18 January 2016 and 23
May 2016 for more details.

The Memorandum of Understanding in Relation
to The Acquisition of Hua Lien

On 23 May 2016, the Company and Hua Lien entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding (the “Memorandum
of Understanding”) setting out the preliminary proposed terms
and conditions in relation to the possible subscription for the
3,700,000,000 new shares of Hua Lien issued to the Company. Please
refer to the announcement dated 25 May 2016 and note 35(d) to the
financial statements for more details.

The Directors will continue to closely evaluate the performance of the
above mentioned businesses and will actively explore new business or
investment as well as fund raising opportunities which can strengthen
the financial position of the Group in order to enhance the value of the
Group which will be in the interests of the Company and shareholders
as a whole.

CURRENT AND GEARING RATIOS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's bank balances and cash
amounted to approximately HK$522,631,000 (as at 31 March
2015: HK$97,361,000). The Group’s net assets value amounted
to approximately HK$857,910,000 (as at 31 March 2015:
HK$625,813,000) with total assets approximately HK$1,887,077,000
(as at 31 March 2015: HK$775,054,000). Net current assets
were approximately HK$1,351,406,000 (as at 31 March 2015:
HK$101,497,000). The current ratio was 23.92 times (as at 31 March
2015: 57.01 times) and gearing ratio was 0.32 times (as at 31 March
2015: N/A) represented on the basis of net debt divided by the
total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum of the
borrowings and loan from ultimate holding company less cash and
cash equivalents.
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CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, certain financial assets held for trading of the
Group with the carrying amount of approximately HK$150,923,000
were pledged to secure the margin financing of approximately
HK$40,245,000 which is repayable on demand and interest bearing at
commercial rates at 5.0% per annum for RMB account and 6.0% per
annum for HK$ account.

The Group’s banking facilities of US$400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,100,000,000) were pledged by certain bank
balances and short-term bank deposits amounting to approximately
HK$81,464,000. As at 31 March 2016, the banking facilities were not
utilised.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (as at 31 March 2015: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group did not have any significant exposure to and did not hedge
against risks associated with foreign currency fluctuation.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had approximately 35 full time
managerial and administrative employees (2015: 13). The Group
affords competitive remuneration packages to its employees based on
prevailing and industry practice. Compensation policies are reviewed
regularly and are designed to reward and motivate productivity and
performance.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHUA Hwa Por (“Mr. Chua”), aged 31, was appointed as
Chairman of the board and executive Director of the Company on
19 January 2016. He has over nine years of experience in the areas
of equity investments, trading of liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and
chemical products and trade financing. Mr. Chua is the founder and
the president of Huacheng International Resources Pte Ltd (ZE R BIFR
BEJREBR/AF)* ), a private company established in Singapore in 2006,
which is the trading arm of Mr. Chua in LPG and chemical products.

Dr. MENG Zhaoyi ("Dr. Meng”), aged 56, was appointed as an
executive Director on 24 May 2016 and redesignated as Chief
Executive Officer, Vice Chairman of the board and President on
8 June 2016. He has been serving as an Director and first deputy
general manager of China Taiping Insurance Group and China Taiping
Insurance Group (HK) Co., Ltd since 2009. He was an executive
Director of China Taiping Insurance Holding Company Limited
(SEHK Stock Code: 0966) since June 2013. Dr. Meng has served in
various positions of the China Insurance Regulatory Commission
from November 1998 to March 2009, including as Director of the
International Cooperation Division of the International Department,
Deputy Director General and Director General of the International
Department. From August 1985 to November 1998, Dr. Meng served
in various positions including Section Chief of Banking Division,
Financial Administration Department, PA to Deputy Governor,
Governor's Office, General Administration Department and Director
of the Property and Casualty Insurance Management Division of the
Insurance Department in People’s Bank of China. Dr. Meng was a State
Council Insurance Expert recognized for outstanding contributions and
was entitled to special government allowances (2007); Dr. Meng was
a Fellow of the Life Office Management Association (U.S., 1999), and
held professional qualifications in securities, futures and options (U.K.,
1996). Dr. Meng is experienced in banking and insurance regulations,
and was involved in the negotiations related to China’s accession to
the WTO.
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Dr. LIU Hua (“Dr. Liu”), aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 8 January 2016. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Precision Instrument and Mechanical Engineering from
Tsinghua University, a Master Degree in Biomedical Engineering from
Imperial College London and a Doctor Degree in Bioinformatics from
the University of Cambridge. He has over nine years of experience
in the areas of equity investment and securities advisory services in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). From December 2008
to August 2014, Dr. Liu was appointed as an executive director and
a member of the investment decision committee of Guotai Junan
Innovation Investment Co., Ltd. (= ZE R AIFIKEBRAFT), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (EIZ=
BELHFHRMBR AR (stock code: SH: 601211), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. From September 2014 to November
2015, He was appointed as the general manager of Donghai Securities

Co, ltd. (CRBEFRMNIB/EFTRAF) .

Mr. HU Yebi ("Mr. Hu"), aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director and Chairman of the Board of the Company on 11 July
2014. He received his MBA from International Management School
of the Netherlands in Delft, Holland and Postgraduate Diploma in
Management Engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in
Beijing, China. Mr. Hu has more than 25 years’ experience in securities
and financial services, merger and acquisition and corporate finance.
Mr. Hu is a licensed person registered under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") to carry on regulated activities on Dealing in
Securities and Advising on Corporate Finance, and he is currently the
responsible officer of Vision Finance International Company Limited, a
registered institution licensed to carry on Type 1 (Dealing in Securities)
and Type 6 (Advising on Corporate Finance) of the regulated activities
under the SFO. Prior to that, Mr. Hu was the managing director, equity
capital markets of DBS Asia Capital Ltd, a subsidiary of DBS Bank
Limited (previously known as the Development Bank of Singapore
Ltd.) from 14 March 1994 to 15 March 2002. Between 16 March
2002 to 22 January 2005, Mr. Hu was the founder and chairman of
Partners Capital International Limited and was appointed as a part-time
member of Central Policy Unit of The Government of the HKSAR from
1 January 2008 to 31 December 2009.

Mr. Hu is the founder and chairman of Vision Finance Group Limited,
the holding company of Vision Finance International Company Limited
and an executive director of Hua Lien International (Holding) Company
Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 969). He was appointed as an executive
directors of ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 1803)
and Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 925) on
23 April 2015 and 23 December 2015 respectively.
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Mr. XU Ke (“Mr. Xu”), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 June 2016. He was graduated from the Zhejiang
University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’'s degree in
electrical engineering. He worked in the China Construction Bank,
Zhejiang Branch, from 1991 to 1999, and was the director of China
Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Branch, from 1999
to February 2016. During that period, he was also the director and
assistant to general manager of Zhejiang Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd. from 2007 to 2010, and was the director and general
manager of Zhejiang Development Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd.* O L REEHREETEAMR A F) from 2008 to 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LIU Yan (“Ms. Liu"), aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 18 June 2015. She
graduated from Central University of Finance & Economics (Beijing)
with a bachelor degree in Economics in 1992. She obtained a master
degree in business administration from University of Rochester
(Rochester, NY) in 2005. Ms. Liu is a member of Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (CICPA). She has over 20 years of solid
experience in auditing, financial management, taxation and fund
management and worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers (Guangzhou,
China), Barclays Capital (New York City), Angelo Gordon Asia Limited
(Hong Kong and New York) and China Everbright Limited (Hong Kong).

Dr. GAO Bin (“Dr. Gao"), age 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 20 November 2015. He holds a bachelor
degree in space physics from University of Science and Technology of
China. He earned an MA from Princeton University in astrophysics and
he has received his PhD degree in Finance and International Business
from Stern School of Business of the New York University in 1996.

He was a tenured associate professor of finance at University of
North Carolina-Chapel Hill (2003-2005), a senior vice president of
Lehman Brothers Inc. (2004-2005) and a managing director of Merrill
Lynch Japan Securities Co. Ltd (2005-2009) and Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) Ltd (2010-2014). He was the head of strategy for Guard
Capital Management (2014-2015) and has extensive knowledge and
experience in foreign exchange, fixed income, equity and commodity
investment, currently serves as a special term professor at PBC School
of Finance of Tsinghua University.
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Mr. MAO Kangfu (“"Mr. Mao"”), age 65 was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director on 5 January 2016. He graduated
from Xinjiang Normal University (#7352 El & A2 ) (formerly known as
Xinjiang Kashi Normal College (#5881 Ei 88 HFI224%) ) of the PRC
in June 1977. Mr. Mao has over 20 years of experience in the areas
of construction engineering and infrastructure management. From
December 1984 to December 1993, he was the general manager
of Zhejiang Wenzhou Dongfang Shipyard* (7 T 8 M 3 7 M) |,
a company principally engaged in shipbuilding. From January 1994
to June 1996, he was the general manager of Wenzhou Mechanic
Company* CRM K422 F)) . From July 1996 to June 1998, he was
the chairman of Wenzhou Economic and Trade Commission (& 1| €
EHE 5 ZEZE®), a commission of city level which is responsible for
the management of economic and trading activities in Wenzhou. From
July 1998 to June 2003, Mr. Mao was appointed as the vice mayor
of Wenzhou. From July 2003 to June 2006, he was the chairman of
Zhejiang Jinwen Railway Group Company* (/T € )& & B & B A
&) . From July 2006 to August 2008, he was the general manager of
Zhejiang Airport Authority* I H#IZE R A A]) .
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are principally engaged in (i) trading
of commodities and securities, (ii) distressed assets investment; (iii)
mining of tungsten in Mongolia and (iv) trading of medical equipment
business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 48 to 124. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements. This
summary does not form a part of the audited financial statements.
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RESULTS 4
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE | —T—HF —T--MOF =—T—= —E——F
FHET FET FET FET FHET
Revenue Uy =5 1,121,247 7,632 2,255 524 1,384
Loss before income tax FrET1S T AT E 18 (158,782)| (74,746) (6,894) (8,957) (4,872)
Income tax credit Frisfiie 42,708 16,479 - - -
Loss for the year FEEE (116,074) | (58,267) (6,894) (8,957) (4,872)

Attributable to: i h

Owners of the Company PAN/NESIE Z DN (116,204) | (58,027) (6,894) (8,957) (4,872)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R 130 (240) - - -
(116,074)| (58,267) (6,894) (8,957) (4,872)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB—XREF | ZT—AF ZT—NF ZT—=F ZT—=F
FHT FHET FHET FHET FET
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 12,161 121 16 127 208
Exploration and evaluation assets WIEMFT L EE - - - 2,409 2,546
Mining rights g 454,541 | 671,624 737,561 735,657 735,657
Deposits Ee 10,000 - - - -
Current assets TmENEE 1,410,375 103,309 26,667 1,319 3,528
Total assets wEE 1,887,077 | 775,054 764,244 739,512 741,939
Current liabilities nBEaE (58,969) (1,812) (3,379) (5,710) (4,072)
Promissory notes AOHER = - - - (20,000)

Loan from ultimate holding company B &KER AR ZE

b (877,040) - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (93,158)| (147,429) (163,913) (163,913) (163,913)
Total liabilities maE (1,029,167)| (149,241) (167,292) (169,623) (187,985)
Net assets BEFE 857,910 | 625,813 596,952 569,889 553,954

CHARITABLE DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year (2015:
Nil).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of Group during the year are set
out in notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year, together with the reasons, are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2016, neither the Company, nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2016, the Company had no retained profits available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company’s contributed surplus
of HK$159,393,000 is currently not available for distribution.
The Company’s share premium account in the amount of
HK$1,157,281,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the year ended 31 March 2016 is as follows:
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Percentage of the group’s total

EEAECHE®
Sales Purchases
HE HEE
The largest customer SUNEYS 38% N/AT 38 B
Five largest customers in aggregate hERAEFP A 84% N/AT 38 B
The largest supplier BRAHERS N/ATiE 55%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A ARERERT N/ATiE 93%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company issued share capital) had any
interest in these customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chua Hwa Por (Chairman) (appointed on 19 January 2016)
Dr. Meng Zhaoyi (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 24 May 2016)

Dr. Liu Hua (appointed on 8 January 2016)

Mr. Hu Yebi

Mr. Xu Ke (appointed on 1 June 2016)

Mr. Liu Xueheng (resigned on 19 January 2016)

Mr. Mung Kin Keung (resigned on 18 June 2015)

Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan (resigned on 30 June 2015)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric (resigned on 22 July 2015)
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon (resigned on 30 June 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yan (appointed on 18 June 2015)

Dr. Gao Bin (appointed on 20 November 2015)

Mr. Mao Kangfu (appointed on 5 January 2016)

Mr. Tsui Sai Ming, Steven (resigned on 30 September 2015)
Mr. Ng Chun Chuen, David (resigned on 20 November 2015)
Mr. Chan Wai Man (resigned 5 January 2016)

In accordance with Bye-law 87, Mr. Hu Yebi will retire from office and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Pursuant to Bye-law 86, Mr. Chua Hwa Por, Dr. Meng
Zhaoyi, Dr. Liu Hua, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Mao Kangfu and Dr. Gao Bin shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer herself for re-election at that meeting. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors had made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
The Director’s biographical information are set out on pages 13 to 16.
CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the
information of the Director since the date of the interim report 2015
and up to the date of this annual report of the Company is set out
below:

Mr. Hu Yebi Appointed as an executive director of Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 925) with effect from 23 December 2015

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at annual
general meeting with reference to the recommendation of the
Group's remuneration committee. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 22, 24 and 31 to the financial statements,
no other contract of significance to which the Company or a subsidiary
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest subsisted at the year end date or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws provides that, among other,
every director and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices
and related matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
any of them.

In this connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company RAEAATRBZHFE
Percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital in
shares held the Company
EERAF
ERTREZ
Name of Director ESHE FERHBE AR Bk
Chua Hwa Por B 871,643,074 58.07%
(Note 1)
(KsE1)
Liu Hua 5 50,000,000 3.33%
Note 1: As at 31 March 2016, 871,643,074 Shares are held under the name of Mzl : RZZE—RF=ZA=+—H " 871,643,074% %

Tai He Financial Group Limited, which is solely owned by Mr. Chua Hwa
Por.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS FERRRA QT RG K EER G
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND ZHEBRER
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 March 2016, the following interests of 5% or more of the RZTE—RNF=ZA=+—8 ZRARABREZES
issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of NENEIGEOIE336RFE 2 B Mrs - %A
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 RATEBEITRAS%IE A EfE w2 RESH 0
of the SFO: ™
Long position of substantial shareholders in the FTERRAERQARRGZER
shares of the Company
Number of % of
ordinary issued ordinary
Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held shares capital
HEBRITERR
RERAB 55 FEEEBEREE = i
Tai He Financial Group Limited Beneficial Owner 871,643,074 58.07%
AMEBMEBEGRAA BREAA (Note 1)
(MEzE1)
Mr. Chua Hwa Por Interest of Controlled Corporation 871,643,074 58.07%
BE R ST E REHEE 2 s (Note 1)
(BF&E1)
Note: B 5
1. Tai He Financial Group Limited is a company incorporated under the 1. AMEMEBEBERAR A —HBRERSHSE

laws of the Cayman Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is
legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Chua Hwa Por.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
March 2016, no other person had an interest or short position in
the Company's shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in note 31 to
the financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company or their respective associates
was interested in, apart from the Group’s businesses, any business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has compiled with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the accounting period
covered by the annual report, except for certain deviations, please refer
to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 45 of the annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision
over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls.
The Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee comprises the all the three non-executive Directors and
one non-executive director of the Company, and meets at least twice
annually to perform their duties.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years
ended 31 March 2014, 2015 and 2016 were audited by BDO Limited
(“BDO"). A resolution will be proposed to the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint BDO as auditor of
the Company.

By order of the Board
Chua Hwa Por
Executive Director

Hong Kong
3 June 2016
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The Board is committed to maintain statutory and regulatory standards
and adherence to the principle of corporate governance with emphasis
on transparency, independence, accountability and responsibility. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and comply
with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Stock Exchange has issued Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
relating to the CG Code for the listed company to comply with. In the
opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the CG Code
throughout the year, except for the certain deviations from the CG
Code which are explained in the following paragraphs.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions, financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
chief executive officer (the “CEQ") should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and CEO should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

The Chairman’s responsibilities are to provide leadership to the Board
and formulate the Group’s business strategies. The Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring the Board works effectively, in particular,
ensuring all the Directors receive reliable, adequate and complete
information in a timely manner. The Chairman may communicate
with the Directors directly or through the assistance of the Company
Secretary to discuss or clarify any issues concerning the Group
from time to time, and to provide any supporting information and
documents to them. The Chairman assumes the primary responsibility
for ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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THE BOARD (continued)
Responsibilities (Continued)

The CEO is responsible for the conduct of day-to-day operation of the
Company and accountable to the Board for all aspects of the corporate
performance. He recommends policies to the Board for consideration
and approval, and keeps the Board informed of any material
developments of the Company’s business. The CEO may delegate his
duties to any other management members or responsible officers of
the Company but he assumes the principal responsibility. Up to the
date of this report, the chairman of the Board is Mr. Chua Hwa Por and
Dr. Men Zhaoyi is the CEO.

Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Chua Hwa Por (Chairman)
(appointed on 19 January 2016)
Dr. Meng Zhaoyi (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 24 May 2016)
Dr. Liu Hua (appointed on 8 January 2016)
Mr. Hu Yebi
Mr. Xu Ke (appointed on 1 June 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Gao Bin (appointed on 20 November 2015)
Mr. Mao Kangfu (appointed on 5 January 2016)
Ms. Liu Yan (appointed on 18 June 2015)

In accordance with Bye-law 87, Mr. Hu Yebi will retire from office and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Pursuant to Bye-law 86, Mr. Chua Hwa Por, Dr. Meng
Zhaoyi, Dr. Liu Hua, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Mao Kangfu and Dr. Gao Bin shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer herself for re-election at that meeting.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors had made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considered that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) with at
least one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this annual report are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors”
section on pages 13 to 16 of this report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications. Save as
disclosed in this report, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships among
members of the Board.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory
matters. There is a procedure to enable Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the expense of the Company in order to discharge of
their duties.

During the year, 2 regular and 16 irregular Board meetings were
held. The Directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda
if necessary. Agenda and accompanying Board papers in respect of
Board meetings are sent out in full to all Directors within reasonable
time before the meeting. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and record in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decision
reached and sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meeting was
held.

All Directors have access to Board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information on a timely manner, which enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all INEDs to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing
Rules.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (Continued)

All non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) are appointed for
specific terms. The term of office for each INED is not more than three
years from the date of appointment subject to the requirement that
one-third of all the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws.

According to the Company’s Bye-Law 86(2), the Directors shall have
the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a director either to fill a causal vacancy on the Board or, subject to
authorization by the Shareholders in general meeting, as an addition to
the existing Board but so that the numbers of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed any maximum number determined from time to time
by the Shareholders in general meeting. All Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by Shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. Any other Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

The Company has a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors to the Board and all Directors should
be subject to re-election at regular intervals. Upon the resignation of a
Director, an announcement is made publicly to disclose the reasons for
his/her resignation.

The Company has arranged a Directors and Officers Liabilities
Insurance for its directors and officers.

Induction for Directors

Each newly appointed director will receive comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has proper understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Continuous Professional Development of the
Directors

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development (the “CPD") to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. According to the confirmation records provided by the Directors,
all of the Directors have participated in the CPD for the year ended 31
March 2016.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Directors’ attendance records

The number of full Board meetings, committee meetings and general
meetings attended by each Director during the year under review is
set out in the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum
number of meetings in the period in which the individual was a Board

member or Committee member.

BEEE®(®)

EEENODBEFEALE 2 2RESS
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Audit Remuneration Nomination

Full Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
ESnE ZREZEEE ENZESEE FWEEEeE REZEggR BREAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chua Hwa Por (note 1) gEREL (M) 4/(4) N/A i F N/AT 38 A N/AT 38 N/AT 8
Dr. Meng Zhaoyi (note 2) HREB LT (f2) N/AT i F N/AT 3 A N/AT 3 A N/AT 3 F N/AT i F
Dr. Liu Hua (note 3) EHE L+ (I 5E3) 4(5) /AR i F /A i F N/AT i FA N/AT i A
Mr. Hu Yebi REEEE 17/(18) /AT 3 A N/AT i £ N/AT i A 0/(1)
Mr. Xu Ke (note 4) A (B k) N/AT i A N/AT i A N/AT i N/AT i A N/ATE A
Mr. Liu Xueheng (note 5) RI21B L& (FH3E5) 5/(14) N/A7R i N/A7R i N/A7R i A 0/(1)
Mr. Mung Kin Keung (note 6) SEsa kA (Msze) 12) N/AT i N/AT i N/AT i N/AT i
Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan (note 7) S & 3584 (FHE7) 3/(5) N/AZR i F N/AT i F N/AT 38 N/AT 8 A
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric (note 8) R A& (F3E8) 0/(6) 0/(1) 0/(1) 0/(1) N/AZ i
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon (note 9) B3 5 & (B3EE9) 0/(5) N/A7R i N/A7R i N/A7R i N/AT 3 A
Independent non-executive BUFHITEE

Directors

Ms. Liu Yan (note 10) B4+ (MiEE10) 9/(15) 2/Q2) 4/(5) 4/(5) 141)
Dr. Gao Bin (note 11) =AEEL (M) 8/(9) N/AT i A 4/(4) 4/(4) N/AT 8 B
Mr. Mao Kangfu (note 12) BRAR %A (HEE12) 0/(6) N/A7R i 0/(2) 0/(2) N/A 3 A
Mr. Chan Wai Man (note 13) REREE (ME13) 6/(12) 2/(2) 2/3) 2/3) /(1)
Mr. Tsui Sai Ming, Steven (note 14)  fRtEBR%E A (KIFE14) 2/(7) (1) N/AT 38 A N/ATN 8 A 1)
Mr. Ng Chun Chuen, David (note 15) SR % %4 (FifzE15) 4/(9) 1(1) 1(1) 1/(1) (1)
Note 1. appointed on 19 January 2016 =2 RIEBE-—RE-AThBEEZRE
Note 2. resigned on 24 May 2016 B 2. RZZE—A"FRAZTEBEET
Note 3. appointed on 8 January 2016 B 3 3. RZE-—RF-—AN\BEZE
Note 4. appointed on 1 June 2016 Mt 54, RZE-—RFNA—ABZE
Note 5. resigned on 19 January 2016 P 35, RZZ—ARFE—AThABTE
Note 6. resigned on 18 June 2015 B 5x6. RZE-—RFNATN\BBRE
Note 7. resigned on 30 June 2015 M aE7. RZE-—RAFNA=ZTHBE
Note 8. resigned on 22 July 2015 P 5ES. RIZE-—RF LA+ ZHEME
Note 9. resigned on 30 June 2015 Bt 5E9. RIZE-—RAFNA=ZTHBE
Note 10.  appointed on 18 June 2015 MzE10. RZZE-—RAFAATN\AEZE
Note 11.  appointed on 20 November 2015 M1, RZZE-—RAF+-A-+HEZE
Note 12.  appointed on 5 January 2016 12, RZZE—A"F—ARAEZE
Note 13.  resigned on 5 January 2016 13, RZT—A"F—ARBAEIT
Note 14.  resigned on 30 September 2015 M5t 14. RZZE-—RFNA=ZTHEE
Note 15.  resigned on 20 November 2015 M 5E15. RZZE-—RF+—HAZ+HEHE
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board has adopted and
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code in so far as they are
applicable except for the following deviations.

CG Codes provision A.1.1 stipulates that the Board should meet
regularly and board meeting should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year, only two regular
board meetings were held to review and discuss the annual and
interim results. The Company does not announce its quarterly results
and hence does not consider the holding of quarterly meetings as
necessary.

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. Independent
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term. However, all directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a remuneration committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules to ensure that there are formal and transparent
procedures for setting policies on the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

As at the reporting date, the remuneration committee comprises three
members, all the independent non-executive Directors namely, Dr. Gao
Bin, Ms. Liu Yan and Mr. Mao Kangfu,. The chairman of remuneration
committee is Dr. Gao Bin.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The duties of the remuneration committee are as follows:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing such policy;

to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee shall
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability
of performance based remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company;

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

(f) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration; and

(9) to advise Shareholders on how to vote with respect to any
service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules.

During the year, 5 meetings were held to review the remuneration of
Directors and resigned Directors. Details of the Directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a nomination committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules to ensure fair and transparent procedures for
appointment, re-election and removal of Directors to the Board.

As at the reporting date, the nomination committee comprises three
members, all the independent non-executive Directors namely, Dr. Gao
Bin, Ms. Liu Yan and Mr. Mao Kangfu, The chairman of nomination
committee is Dr. Gao Bin.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
The duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer.

During the current year, the nomination committee had evaluated
nominees to fill up the vacancy resulted from resigned Directors and
made recommendation to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the reporting date, the audit committee comprises three
members, all the independent non-executive Directors namely, Dr.
Gao Bin, Ms. Liu Yan and Mr. Mao Kangfu as members. The chairman
of audit committee is Ms. Liu Yan who possess the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the audit committee
is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditor. The
audit committee has separate and independent access to the advice
and services of the senior management of the Company, and is able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon
reasonable request.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

REZES (&)
ErEEeMMENT

(@) TEHRSNEFENRE ABREK (2
EEEE M MR HE) - W EAEE
HHEBmEEGREES:

(b) VEARKAEERWEFEFRGHENA
ToUHBREREREBALTHEESZLHI

MEEFRHEER

(0  HERBMIFRITEEMBEIE: &

d HREFZEREHNZEURES (LER
EEeTFERITRER) BETENERH
EEREESRHEH#-

AEERN REZECETFHRBAUNEFHES
BIgELAZER THESSRHES-

BEREES

RERH ERZEeh 2K EBAK KBS
HABIYIEHTES ASEEL MLt R
a@%?ﬁi EZZBe IR AEMZ L (H

BEABEEER SRS HBMKERES
EHEBEEMAE) BEREE R UEMLMKEE
BARNRERIEZHBMNEBA-BZES
2NERBYURT RTINS ARASREREN
EARRE MEAGBREXRTHASKELZE
ER FHEBRAAARIEE-



R N

Corporate Governance Report

18 38 B 6 WAl

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The duties of the audit committee are as follows:

1 Relationships with the Company’s auditor

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and to consider any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
accounting standard,

to discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations;

to ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm
is involved; and

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that
is under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit
committee shall report to the Board, identifying any
matters in respect of which it considers that action or
improvement is needed and making recommendations
as to the steps to be taken.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

2 Review of financial information of the

Company

(a) To monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them.
this regard, in reviewing the Company's annual report
and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to the
Board, the audit committee shall focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(ii) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any

qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

(b) in regard to 2(a) above:

(i) members of the audit committee must liaise with
the Company’s Board, senior management and
the person appointed as the Company’s qualified

accountant; and

(i) the audit committee shall consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration to any
matters that have been raised by the Company's
qualified accountant, compliance officer or

auditors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

3

Oversight of the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control
procedures

(a)

(b)

(e)

)

(9)

(h)

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal

control and risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal
control and ensure that management has discharged its
duty to have any effective internal control system;

to consider any findings of major investigations of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management'’s response;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing
within the Company, and to review and monitor the
effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management'’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external auditor’s
management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out herein

and, in particular, the matters required to be performed
by the audit committee under the CG Code;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

3

Oversight of the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control
procedures (Continued)

(i)

()

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board,

to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters, and to ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent
investigation of such matters and for appropriate
follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relation with the external auditor; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the
interim and final audits and any matters the auditor
may wish to discuss (in the absence of the management
where necessary).

Independence of external auditors

(a)

to consider all relationships between the Company and
the audit firm (including the provision of non-audit
services);

to seek from the audit firm, on an annual basis,
information about policies and processes for
maintaining independence and monitoring compliance
with relevant requirements, including current
requirements regarding rotation of audit partners and
staff;

to meet with the auditor, at least annually, in the
absence of management, to discuss matters relating to
its audit fees, any issues arising from the audit and any
other matters the auditor may wish to raise;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

4 Independence of external auditors (Continued)

(d)

(e)

to agree with the Board the Company’s policies relating
to the hiring of employees or former employees of the
external auditor and monitor the application of such
policies. The audit committee shall then be in a position
to consider whether in the light of this there has been
any impairment or appearance of impairment, of the
auditor’s judgment or independence in respect of the
audit; and

to ensure that the provision by an external auditor
of non-audit services does not impair the external
auditor’s independence or objectivity. When assessing
the external auditor’s independence or objectivity in
relation to the provision of non-audit services, the audit
committee may wish to consider:

(i) whether the skills and experience of the audit
firm make it a suitable supplier of the non-audit
services;

(ii) whether there are safeguards in place to

ensure that there is no threat to objectivity
and independence in the conduct of the audit
resulting from the provision of such services by
the external auditor;

(iii) the nature of the non-audit services, the related
fee levels and the fee levels individually and in
aggregate relative to the audit firm; and

(iv) the criteria which govern the compensation of
the individuals performing the audit.

All the members of the audit committee have confirmed to be
independent with reference to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed the financial results

and reports as well as the Company’s internal control review report.

The audit committee also met the external auditors and monitored the
appointment of external auditors.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the Corporate Governance
functions set out in the CG Code D.3.1. as below:

(a)

(e)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code"”) as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. The
Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing, and
coordinating the daily operation of the Company are delegated to the
management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2015. In preparing the financial statement, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and
have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis. Respective
responsibilities of the Directors and the external auditors to the
Shareholders are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 46 to 47 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, BDO was appointed as the external auditor of the
Company. The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Group
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 March 2016 amounted to HK$750,000 and HK$65,000 respectively.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishing and maintaining a sound
system of internal control within the Group. However, such as system
was designed to manage various risks of the Group within certain
acceptable risk level, rather than complete the elimination of the risk
of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group.

The current Board has already commenced an assessment and
review of the internal control system of the Company and will take
appropriate action to maintain an adequate internal control system to
safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the Company's assets, and
review the effectiveness of such on an annual basis through the audit
committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Cheng Sik Kong (“Mr. Cheng”),
is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as the
communications among the Board members, shareholders and
management. Mr. Cheng also prepares detailed minutes of each
meeting. Board minutes would be sent to the Board for comments
as soon as practicable. Mr. Cheng reports directly to the Board. All
Directors also have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed. During the Year, Mr. Cheng undertook over 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group strives to disclose relevant information on its activities
to shareholders in an open and timely manner. Communication is
achieved through:

(1) The Company’s annual and interim reports which have been
enhanced to present a balance, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group position and prospects.

(2) Notices of annual and other general meetings and
accompanying explanatory materials.

(3) Announcement releases on major transaction.

(4) Disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant regulatory
bodies.

(5) Response to inquiries from shareholders by Directors during the
Annual General Meeting (the “"AGM").

The Company endeavor to maintain two way communications with
the Shareholders through various channels. All the enquiries are dealt
with in timely manner. The shareholders are encouraged to attend
the AGM and special general meetings (the “SGM") of the Company.
The shareholders are also encouraged to put their enquiries about the
Group by mail to the principle place of business of the Company (for
the attention of company secretary).

Constructive use of Annual General Meeting

The relations with shareholders should be maintained through
constructive use of AGM. We are encouraging shareholders to attend
at the AGM, giving shareholders an opportunity to ask questions and
to hear about the Company during the meeting and an opportunity to
use their vote and greater openness in voting procedures at the AGM.
Our executive Directors and responsible person of audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee will answer
the questions raised by the shareholders. Annual report and related
papers are post to shareholders for their consideration at least 20 clear
business days prior to the AGM. AGM proceedings are continually
reviewed in the light of corporate governance best practices.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to Convene a
Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-Law 58, members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Suite 1206-1209, 12th Floor, Three Pacific Place,
1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (for the attention of company
secretary), and may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more requisitionists.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the said date.

A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be
convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be
retained by the Company out of any sums due or to become due from
the Company by way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their
services to such Directors as were in default.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for the Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

M

3)

Proposals at shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the
members of the Company holding at the date of the submission
of the proposals not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the submission carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3
business days after a notice of the shareholders’ meeting have
been served to all registered shareholders by the Board. The
proposals must be written and must state the objects of the
proposals, and must be signed by the proposers, and mailed
and deposited at Suite 1206-1209, 12th Floor, Three Pacific
Place, 1 Queen's Road, East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong (for the
attention of company secretary); and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more proposers.

The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the proposals are
proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to update the resolutions by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all registered
shareholders, provided that the proposers have deposited a
sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses involved in publishing supplementary circular and
updating related resolutions. On the contrary, if the requisition
has been verified as not in order, the proposer will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, no resolution will be updated
as requested.
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|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

55 - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BESTWAY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bestway
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereafter referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 124,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

BDO Limited
BRUEREEHMERAERAT

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEETHEF15E
KZRHI2518
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BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Leung Tze Wai

Practising Certificate Number P06158

Hong Kong, 3 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #lZ =L —R"E=-A=1+—RHILFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XE —E—hF
B 5 FERT FHET
Revenue W 7 1,121,247 7,632
Cost of sales $H & AR (1,041,520) (4,548)
Gross profits ER 79,727 3,084
Other income H A A 7 4,716 27
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (2,472) (898)
Administrative expenses THAX (23,660) (10,861)
Impairment loss on mining rights HIERE 2 REEE 13 (217,083) (65,937)
Other operating expenses Hhgem® (10) (161)
Loss before income tax BRETEBATE B 8 (158,782) (74,746)
Income tax credit FIERER 9 42,708 16,479
Loss for the year FEEIE (116,074) (58,267)
Other comprehensive income Hib2EBA
Items that may be reclassified HEnpkEFT DR
subsequently to profit or loss HBwm o HEH
— Exchange difference on translation RE G INEB I ISR
of financial statements of foreign EEXCENERE
operations (646) 3
Total comprehensive income FEZEWRALRE
for the year (116,720) (58,264)
(Loss)/Profit for the year DTALTEEREE (F18)
attributable to: /A
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE/ RSN (116,204) (58,027)
Non-controlling interests e 130 (240)
(116,074) (58,267)
Total comprehensive income LTATEEZEKALE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZINNETEF SN (116,850) (58,024)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR 130 (240)
(116,720) (58,264)
(Re-presented)
(&=E75))
Losses per share BREE 10
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARRE#E (GBA) (8.78) (5.20)
Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 -
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As at31 March 2016 R—ZE—RE=ZF=+—H

£

A

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-RE —T—hF
{hg=2 FEx FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEENEE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 12 12,161 121
Mining rights RiERE 13 454,541 671,624
Deposit oA 19 10,000 -
476,702 671,745
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets held for trading FIFEEENEMEE 15 760,613 -
Financial derivative contract TRITEED 16 75,266 -
Trade receivables FEUE B RN 17 3,271 2,795
Inventories FE 18 845 1,277
Deposits, other receivables and e Hith EREIE K&
prepayments TEfT RIA 19 47,749 1,876
Cash and cash equivalents HekERRELEE 20 522,631 97,361
1,410,375 103,309
Current liabilities FEaE
Borrowings BE 21 40,245 -
Amount due to ultimate holding company &1 & 4452 % A &) 5 1H 22 4,798 -
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEtBE R H R IR 23 2,398 1,812
Provision for income tax FriS B & 15 11,528 -
58,969 1,812
Net current assets RBEEFEE 1,351,406 101,497
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBESE 1,828,108 773,242

BREBREZERERAR 49‘
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Asat 31 March 2016 A —"F=A=+—H

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XE —E—hF
B 5% FERx FET
Non-current liabilities FERBERE
Loan from ultimate holding company REZEZERRARZER 24 877,040 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE & 25 93,158 147,429
970,198 147,429
Net assets EEFE 857,910 625,813
EQUITY E
Equity attributable to owners of ARBEBAEBGESR
the Company
Share capital A& A 26 75,054 52,296
Reserves G 27 773,841 570,632
848,895 622,928
Non-controlling interests TR ER 9,015 2,885
Total equity ERAE 857,910 625,813
Chua Hwa Por Meng Zhaoyi
EER HBE
Director Director
2 o
Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE —T—R"F=A=+—HIFE

Equity attributable to the Company’s owners

ANAEFARGES
Exchange Non-
Share Share Contributed fluctuation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium* surplus* reserve* losses* Total interests equity
(note 27(a)) (note 27(b)) (note 27(c))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B& RO EE* BARH EXRDEB EREE an FERER ERAE
(ME272)  (WE2700)) (MEE27(c))
TEL FEL FEL TR TEL THEL TEL FEL
At 1 April 2014 RZE-EEMA-A 44,796 760,722 52,743 (1 (261,198) 596,952 - 596,952
Loss for the year FERE - - - - (58,027) (58,027) (240) (58,267)
Other comprehensive income Atb2ERE
- Exchange difference on —BREBNEBHBR
translation of financial REEZERER
statements of foreign
operations - - - 3 - 3 - 3
Total comprehensive income FERENGEER
for the year - - - 3 (58,027) (58,024) (240) (58,264)
Issue of shares (note 26(a)) BT (MiE26() 7,500 76,500 - - - 84,000 - 84,000
Capital contribution from non- FERERTE
controlling interest - - - - - - 3,125 3,125
At31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R=ZF—HF
=ZA=t-Bk
—E-R4ENMA-H 52,296 837,222 52,743 (108) (319,225) 622,928 2,885 625,813
(Loss)Profit for the year FE(BE) /&7 - - - - (116,204) (116,204) 130 (116,074)
Other comprehensive income Hip2ERE
- Exchange difference on —BEBNER
translation of financial BBRRELL
statements of foreign ERESE
operations - - - (646) - (646) - (646)
Total comprehensive income FERENGEER
for the year - - - (646) (116,204) (116,850) 130 (116,720)
Issue of shares (notes 26(b) and 26(c) %17 1%
(Fi+E26(0) B26(c)) 22,758 320,059 - - - 342,817 - 342,817
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interest - - - - - - 6,000 6,000
At 31 March 2016 RZB-AE
=A=t+-H 75,054 1,157,281 52,743 (754) (435,429) 848,895 9,015 857,910
* The consolidated reserves of the Group of approximately * REAEBEGEEUBRABREMENAEE
HK$773,841,000 (2015: HK$570,632,000) as at 31 March 2016 as R-E-—RE=ZA=FT-—B2HAHEY

773,841,000/ 7T ( —F—HAF :570,632,000/8
L) NBRELEHEERAE -

presented in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
comprised these reserve accounts.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GaBemeaR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #lZ =L —R"E=-A=1+—RHILFE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XE —E—hF
FERT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZHERE
Loss before income tax M FET1S R AT 18 (158,782) (74,746)
Adjustments for: KRAETYEE:
Interest income B A (245) (27)
Impairment loss on mining rights R 2 BERBE 217,083 65,937
Fair value loss on financial derivative contract CRITEADZ A TFERE 2,234 -
Unrealised loss arising from changes in fair value FIEEENemMEELNTE
of financial assets held for trading BYEL 2 ARREE 4,684 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERZEZHE 423 16
Operating profit/(loss) before working BEESEHATZ
capital changes R (EE) 65,397 (8,820)
Increase in financial assets held for trading BIEEEMN S RIE EE N (765,297) -
Increase in financial derivative contract ERITAES LE M (77,500) -
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERL(Em) 432 (662)
Increase in trade receivables JE U B 5 BR SR 0 (476) (1,423)
Increase in prepayments, other receivables TE T FRIE - H fth FE YR IE R
and deposits g =pill (6,892) (1,710)
Decrease in trade payables B 5 BR TR = (1,248)
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued liabilities FE & & {F K H A FE T BR 3R
and other payables @, i) 586 (319)
Cash used in operations KEMAZRE (783,750) (14,182)
Interest income B U A 245 27
Tax paid [RENEZRE (973) (5)
Net cash used in operating activities AEE RS 2 FEE (784,478) (14,160)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZHERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEDE BFERZE (12,466) (122)
Deposits paid for investments REXNz®R® (48,981) -
Net cash used in investing activities REZETHZH 2 FEH (61,447) (122)

52 Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 N
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Al amEg

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HlE =%

—RNFE=ZRA=t+—HILFE

2016 2015
HK5'000 HK$'000
—~E —ET—hEF
?%E TET
Cash flows from financing activities METHZHERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares BATIR D 2 FR1S 5RIBF 58 342,817 84,000
Proceeds from loan from ultimate holding company REREERAF ZERZ
FiS 5/ E 1,016,240 -
Repayment of loan from ultimate holding company BB &REIZER R F 2 ERK (139,200) -
Increase in amount due to ultimate holding company ~F& i & 42 2 % 22 &) 5 IR & o0 4,798 -
Capital contribution from non-controlling interest IR ST E 6,000 3,125
Proceeds from margin financing RESREZAEIHIE 40,245 -
Net cash generated from financing activities BEZE 1R B2 FHE 1,270,900 87,125
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRERRELBEENFE 424,975 72,843
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes IEERSH2EE 295 4
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April REAE—BZRER
ZRREER 97,361 24,514
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March R=ZA=+t—HZRER
EEHELER 522,631 97,361
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRERABRSEBERDN
cash equivalents
Short-term bank deposits 5 EBERTTF 3K 119,893 -
Bank and cash balances RITEReEH 402,738 97,361
522,631 97,361

BREBREZERERAR 53‘
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 e ¢ W Gk

31 March 2016 —Z—XF=HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bestway International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
on 18 August 1995. The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Suite 1206-1209, 12th Floor, Three Pacific Place, 1
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the "HKEx") on 2 October 1995.

The directors of the Company consider the Company's ultimate
holding company to be Tai He Financial Group Limited, a
company incorporated and domiciled in the Cayman Islands

with limited liability.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out

in note 14 to the financial statements.

2. APPLICATIONS OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 April 2015

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new/amended HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for
the Group's financial statements for the annual period

beginning on 1 April 2015:

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2010-2012
(Amendments) Cycle

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2011-2013
(Amendments) Cycle

The adoption of these new/amended HKFRSs has no
material impact on the Group's financial statements.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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31 March 2016 ZZE—"F=HA=+—H

A

2. APPLICATIONS OF HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

ERERVHHREEA (&
BB ®REER]) &)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMEERERPIHET
issued but are not yet effective SRIETE R RREE
Al

IO R BN B KRB AR
ZEEMMERAREM A AR EEL &
REPEM I/ EERTBEYMH

SR T

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2012-2014 ERUBRELN —T-—52-Z-/
(Amendments) Cycle! SCHES FRBEESE

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative' BERgHER R
HKAS 1 F15 (BRI A)

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable BEREHER AEXCMERBE
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation and E165 RAE AZEE'

HKAS 38 Amortisation’ B ERE385
(BETA)

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate B g EA BUMBRROERE
HKAS 27 Financial Statements'’ £275% (BFIK)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments? EBMBRE SR ITA?

HERIE 5
(ZF—m%)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets ERUBREEN BREFEAMELAYL
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its E105% RAE BELNRAZHENEE
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture® BEEAE285 HEIBRA

SHES

Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the ERUBREEN BREER ERGAAR
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Consolidation Exception’ E105 B ZBIMER!
and HKAS 28 B R 2

E1RREE
BEERE28%5
(B3TA)
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts' BEUBKBREEN EEELERP
F14%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERUBREEN BEPAHKR
Customers? F155
HKFRS 16 Leases? ERUBREEN HE
£16%

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016

! R-T—RNFE—A—-BHUE
R th 2 G [ B R A A

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZE—NF—A—B=E
January 2018 Fga 2 F 5 B A R
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 RZZE-—NFE—-RB—B%E
January 2019 Fga 2 F 5 B A R
4 Effective date is deferred 4 £ H BB EE
BREBREZERERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2016 —Z—XF=HA=+—H

2.

APPLICATIONS OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

An entity's share of other comprehensive income
from equity accounted interests in associates and joint
ventures will be split between those items that will and
will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in
aggregate as a single line item within those two groups.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
— Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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31 March 2016 ZZE—"F=HA=+—H

2.

APPLICATIONS OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell
the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All
other debt and equity instruments are measured at fair
value through profit and loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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2. APPLICATIONS OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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2. APPLICATIONS OF HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Save as the main changes described above, the Group is
in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the directors
are not yet in a position to quantity the effects on the
Group's financial statements.

(c) New Companies Ordinance provisions
relating to the preparation of financial
statements

The Group has adopted the amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities issued by the HKEx
relating to the disclosure of financial information with
reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, during the current financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the
Group's financial position or performance, however
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622,
impacts on the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. For example, the
statement of financial position of the Company is now
presented in the notes to the financial statements rather
than as a primary statement and related notes to the
statement of financial position of the Company are
generally no longer presented.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the HKEx.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments held for trading and financial derivative
contract that are measured at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. The policies that have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases. The
results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of the disposal, as
appropriate.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group's perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power
over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other expenses such as repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining life
of the leases but not
exceeding 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Mining rights

Mining rights are carried at cost and are subject to
amortisation upon commissioning of the mine for
production. Mining rights are depleted on the unit-of-
production basis over the total proven and probable
reserves of the mine concerned. Mining rights are also
subject for impairment testing whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not be
recoverable (note (e)).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, mining rights and
investments in subsidiaries are subject for impairment
testing. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the assets’ carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those of other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflow independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is subsequently reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only
to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. A reversal of
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Financial Instruments
(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. The financial assets of
the Group are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established generally
by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.
They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade
receivables), and also incorporate other types
of contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL")

These assets include financial assets held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is presented as gain or loss arising
from change in fair value of financial instruments
held for trading line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Fair value
is determined in accordance with the market bid
price.

Bestway International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016

4., ERESTHTBEBE (@)

() MBITA &

(i)

BHBEE (H)

B3R ERHE

ER R EYGRIRRE EEX
AR SR A A BT 5
BREZTEVBEE
DBEEFEBATPREHEE
mRRBEL (B 5 RN
) BRI EREE A
ZANEBEE N
RiE - GEABERNZER
BRI BRRE
BRI AR

R FlEFABZER ([
RFEFAARZIR]) 28
BEE

LEEEBERBEEEZY
BEE - MY EENTH
REEBMMmMEBA - DR
RBEEE -TETATRSD
BRAREEE KRIFEEE
REREHT R

M FHERIL - A FEFT
ANBRRZMBEERRTF
B8 mRAFEZSHER
HESMRERSARER -
REBEERZ W R F
BITERVBEEMRRZ
ERRERFE WA
EEBATREKT 25 BFHE
BESMIARFERESZ
WesskEBRIAR - R FETD
RIETSEREEE -



R N

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 e < Wl Gk

31 March 2016 ZZE—"F=HA=+—H

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset,
other than those at FVTPL, is impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset and that event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because
of debtor’s financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for the relevant financial
asset.

A

4.

EARSHHERE (@)

(f)

B ITE (&)

(i)

HBEERE

REBREBR  NEBEFG
ERBMHEEFEREZ
EAIFBRER - iR RHE
REERBE 2 —BHZA
EHEYFETBRER
B MBS HMEEE
AR AR KR 2R E FTEK
2B SEAE AR
UHEE (AT EFAR
@RI EERIN) KR
AR - BERE R B

- BB AHRE KXY
IR B

- B s EsiE R
MEBRERER:

- B R E IS A R B
BEREmMS T HE
B R

- B AB BB E
KETHMAHE
e

B REWRFE

HREBRIBEEHREER
18- IR IE s MR R (B
B WNEEZREERR
FRERFIRRER 2 AR
KFEeREREBEZZRT
H-WBEEREEER
ERBEEERERD - HHBE
EZ TN KEE REA
Yeml - RIS AERE R B E B
BB AR A o

BREBRZERERAA

—EARER




68

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 e ¢ W Gk

31 March 2016 —Z—XF=HA=+—H

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classified its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at
amortised cost are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
borrowings, amount due to ultimate holding
company, loan from ultimate holding company,
trade payables and accrued liabilities and other
payables.
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

They are subsequently measured

Gain or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and

subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises purchase cost and, where
applicable, those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is calculated as the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business

less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(h) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received,

net of allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-

added tax. The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods or products is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the customers, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods or products sold. Normally, risk is
transferred upon dispatch of general goods
(including medical equipment, Chinese tea and
wines). For petrochemical products, the risk is
transferred when the products is delivered to the
destination specified by the customers, which is
typically the vessel on which it is shipped, the
destination port or the customer’s premises.

Realised gain or loss on financial assets held for
trading is recognised on a trade date basis whilst
unrealised gain or loss on financial assets held
for trading is recognised to restate to their fair
values as at the end of reporting period.

Revenue from trading of metal-related
commodity contracts is recognised on net
settlement basis.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when they
relate to any items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Foreign currencies

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from
the retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group's
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at
the closing rate at the end of reporting period. Income
and expenses have been converted into the HK$ at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
recognised in the other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

0

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(I) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or the Group's parent.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U

(m)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee under operating lease

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and
in banks and short-term deposits with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major business lines. The Group
has identified the following reportable segments:
Securities trading Investing in various securities
and generating investment
income.

Commodity trading Net margin earned from net
sale and purchase of metal-
related products in London
Metal Exchange standard as
well as the sales of specific
petrochemical products with
the provision of related
value-added services.

Mining and
exploitation of
nature resources

Mining and production
of tungsten resources in
the Republic of Mongolia
(“Mongolia”)

Sales of medical
equipments

Sales of medical equipments
in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC")

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the business lines requires different resources
as well as operating approaches.

The reporting segment results exclude income taxes and
unallocated income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment, are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate assets
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities but
corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment and are
not allocated to a segment. Corporate liabilities include
tax payables and loan from ultimate holding company.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

()

Estimated impairment on mining rights

Mining rights are assessed annually to determine for
any indication of impairment. Where an indicator
of impairment exists, a formal estimate of the
recoverable amount is made, which is the higher of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
These assessments require the use of estimates and
assumptions such as long-term selling prices, discount
rates, future capital requirements and operating
performance. Fair value is determined as the amount
that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in
an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable
and willing parties. Fair value for the mining rights is
generally determined as the present value of estimated
future cash flows arising from the continued use of
the asset, which includes estimates such as the cost
of future operating plans and eventual disposal, using
assumptions that an independent market participant
may take into account. Cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a post-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Management
has assessed its cash-generating units as being an
individual mine site which is the lowest level for which
cash flows are largely independent of those of other
assets. Based on the directors’ assessment, impairment
loss approximately of HK$162,812,000 (net of tax)
(2015: HK$49,453,000) has been provided on mining
rights for the year, details of which has been set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Useful lives of mining rights

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives for its mining rights based on the proven
and probable reserves. However, the mining rights
were granted for terms of 30 years and renewable for
another 20 years. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the Group will be able to continuously
renew the mining rights and the business license of
the respective mining subsidiaries at minimal charges.
Accordingly, the Group has used the proven and
probable reserves as a basis of estimation for the useful
lives of its mining rights.

Amortisation rates are determined based on estimated
proven and probable mine reserve volume with
reference to the independent technical assessment
report. The estimates involve subjective judgements
in developing such information and have taken into
account the recent production and the technical
information about each mine. The capitalised cost
of mining rights are amortised using the units of
production method. Any change to the estimated
proven and probable mine reserves will affect
the amortisation charge of those mining rights.
Management will reassess the useful lives whenever the
ability to renew the mining rights and business license is
changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of competitors’ actions
in response to severe industry cycles. Management
reassesses the estimations at the end of reporting period
to ensure inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
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Y Y e
5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. EESHEET RHE @)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(iv) Impairment of trade receivables (iv) EWEZERFRE
The Group’s management assesses the collectability of REBEREE GG ERE SRR
trade receivables. This estimate is based on the credit B R U (B 14 o s IB (R ET TY IR IR AN
worthiness, repayment history of the Group’s customers EEFPHNEE BRLH ULE
and the current market condition. Management AT TR AEH o B RIS AR R
reassesses if there is any indication of the impairment FREBETR  A|EREKY
loss at the end of reporting period. HiEEfTEM-
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. D HEEH
The executive directors have identified the Group’s business BN FT4(0)E — T ITEFE
lines as operating segments as further described in note 4(o). REEBEBED RIEEDH -
Securities Commodity Sales of
trading trading Mining medical equipment Total
EE 3 BRES b3 | HEBERE &t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 |  HK$'000
“B-RF | ZET-0F | ZB-AF | ZT-0F | ZB-RF | ZT-0F | ZB-AF | ZF-0F | ZB-RF | ZF-IF
TEn TERL TEn TERT TER AL TER TAT TEn ThT
Reportable segment revenue TERADUE
Revenue from external customers — RESNAZP 2 UiE 72,426 - | 1,035,473* - - - 12,886 6,736 | 1,120,785 6,736
Reportable segment profit/(loss) T2HAHEH,/ (58) 60,362 - 1,755 - | @17, (66,691) 692 (956) | (154,902) (67,647)
Bank interest income RN 225 - - - 1 - 19 18 25 18
Depreciation il 358 - - - 3 2 62 3 423 5
Impairment loss on mining rights & HEEE - - - - | 217,083 65,937 - - | 217,083 65,937
Reportable segment assets NE2RIPEE 1,193,483 - 184,346 - 454,701 671,740 11,997 11,925 | 1,844,527 683,665
Additions to non-current segment  ERREFRHLFEE
assets during the year 11,760 - - - 16 - 690 7 12,466 7
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI PEE (40,546) - (181) - (93,571) | (147,668) (262) (385) | (134,560) | (148,053)
* This consists of net fair value loss arising from the trading of * HBeBHEAERE SESE2435,000
metal-related products amounting to approximately HK$35,000 BL2ATEBEEFE(KRFELEE
which were recognised on net settlement basis and the gross EEBRIRALCLEREIEE LN
sales arising from the trading of petrochemical products 1,035,508,000/8 7T 2 4 & 4828 4 7K ©
amounting to approximately HK$1,035,508,000.
Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 A
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZHEER (&)

The totals presented for the Group's operating segments REBE LKL DT R BRI K

reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as presented in 2 FERBEERAOHENT

the financial statements as follows:

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®-AF —F-RF
FHET FHET
Reportable segment revenue BRI E 1,120,785 6,736
Sales of other general goods HEHEM—RE® 462 896
Revenue g 1,121,247 7,632
Reportable segment loss A2 EEE (154,902) (67,647)
Unallocated income and expenses AOBEHBARAL (3,880) (7,099)
Loss before income tax MRETEBAIEE (158,782) (74,746)
Reportable segment assets AWM FEE 1,844,527 683,665
Other corporate assets HEthAm&E 42,550 91,389
Group assets EEEE 1,887,077 775,054
Reportable segment liabilities AE2MmoEasE 134,560 148,053
Loan from ultimate holding company RERBIERATZER 877,040 -
Provision for income tax Fris T 15 11,528 -
Other corporate liabilities HEtbhArmlBE 6,039 1,188
Group liabilities fEAE 1,029,167 149,241
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Revenue of the Group was generated from trading business in
the PRC, Singapore and Hong Kong. The following table sets

out information about the geographical location of the Group's

revenue from external customers and its non-current assets. The
geographical location of customers is determined based on the
location at which the goods were delivered. The geographical
location of the non-current assets is based on the physical and
operating locations of the assets.

TEER (&)

AEEZWERKBRTE - #FINEEER
ZESHEB - TREINABEAKERAIN
MEFPUEIEFRBEEZHEMEY
ER-BPZMBLEIRBRHER
WEETE - FRBEE 2 HIBMETRE
BEZERLEEMIET -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

RENBEF K kRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
—E-—ARE —ZET—REF —E—XRE —T—REF
FHERT FHET FET FET

The Republic of Mongolia 5 & 41

("Mongolia”) (I&=&1) - - 454,553 671,624
The PRC i 356,280 7,473 5,763 74
Singapore BB 119,493 - - -
Malaysia SR i 141,585 - - -
Greece I 193,419 - - -
India HE 116,250 - - -
United Arab Emirates B A7 R EE & 2 R B 147,177 - = -
Hong Kong aBA 47,043 159 16,386 47
1,121,247 7,632 476,702 671,745

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the major customers
contributed over 10% of total revenue of the Group are listed

as below:

BE-_Z—-— A NF=ZA=+—HLFE A
NREBARREFRI0% U TN TIERES
T

2015

Major customers FERP —E-XRF —ZT—RF
HK$"000 % HK$'000 %

FHERT FERT

Customer A EFA 424,196 38% - -
Customer B =B 220,181 20% - -
Customer C ®PC 147,177 13% - -
Customer D ZFD 126,178 1% - -
Customer E ZPE - - 2,308 30%
Customer F ZEF = - 2,427 32%
917,732 82% 4,735 62%

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

A

Revenue of the Group represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, net of allowances for returns, trade discounts and
value-added tax. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other

income is as follows:

W3 B H Atb U A

AEEZ WS EHREE BESTHAR
BERBBRZAEERBERFE - IE
B R EMRAZ T

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-REF —ZT—REF
FHERT FET
Revenue W =
Sale of petrochemical products HEALER 1,035,508 -
Net fair value change of metal-related SERBEAONTEZESFE
contracts (35) -
Net fair value gain from financial BIFEENSRMIANTER
instruments held for trading =558 72,426 -
Sale of medical equipment THE R 12,886 6,736
Sale of other general goods HEHM—RE S 462 896
1,121,247 7,632
Other income Higg A
Interest income FE KA 245 27
Exchange gains, net e H e - 588 2,456 -
Referral fee income NEEBIRA 2,000 -
Sundry income FMIERA 15 -
4,716 27

BREBRERERAR 83 .
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8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRIMEHAEE
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging: BR PrAS B AT B B T S HIRR T 51 B IR 18 3
B
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XE —E—AhF
FHET FET
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI B & 750 588
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses EHRAEALZFERAR 1,041,520 4,548
Depreciation of property, plant mE- - BELRREBETE

and equipment (note 12) (FFEE12) 423 16
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments EIRXA (TBEZEEME)

(note 11)) (HFEE11) 5,842 2,080
Defined contribution costs FEIE A AR 150 62
Total staff costs BT KA 5,992 2,142
Operating lease charges in respect EEAMREMELE

of office premises HEXH 2,877 1,094

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT 9. FBHER
2016 2015
HK$"000 HK$'000
—E-RF —T—RF
FET FET
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") REI SR
([ZEmER])

— Current year —REFEE 4,341 4
Singapore corporate tax FT AN 1 A

— Current year —KREE 7,222 -
Hong Kong profits tax BEEFEH

— Under provision in prior year —-REFEREETR - 1
Deferred tax credit (note 25) RIEFIEE % (M 5E25) (54,271) (16,484)
Total income tax credit Fristiif R 58 (42,708) (16,479)

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided in the financial
statements as the Group did not derive any assessable profit for
the year (2015: Nil).

84 Bestway International Holdings Limited
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9.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

Singapore corporate tax is calculated at 17% on the estimated
assessable profits for the year (2015: Nil).

EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable profits of
subsidiaries operating in mainland China at 25% (2015: 25%),
unless preferential rates are applicable in the cities where the
subsidiaries are located.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Mongolia are subject to Mongolian
income tax which is calculated at the rate of 10% on the first 3
billion Mongolian Turgrik (“MNT") of taxable income and 25%
on the amount in excess thereof. No income tax was provided
as these Mongolian subsidiaries have not derived any taxable
income during the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

A reconciliation of the income tax credit and the accounting

REBKR &)

N ERTIBBEAFE 2 G ERH
HARNT%AE (ZE—RF &) -

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ MO RN EAEES 2B
RBEZAFHERBEN 225% (ZF—F

F:25% ) (EHEE  HINBARMELS

BREEREERIN-

REHFEFMRIZHBRARBHMNT S
BEAEH ZAEBHIUNERBEAS
3,000,000,000% F B 27 ([ 5 & Bl#%
BH)ZI0%ZHEAE BH D IE
5% HEFE - AR ZESTHWEB QA
ERE-_ZT—RNFZA=+t—HIEFEL
MESRSHWA(ZE—HE &) B
IHE N SR Bt BT 15 B 4 S 4 o

BRRERAREIHMEHERLRGFEX

loss at applicable tax rates is presented below: RTX27:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
B WP —E-5F
FET FHET
Loss before income tax BRPTIS T AT S 18 (158,782) (74,746)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to RERARNEBRBEEERE
losses in the respective jurisdiction B2 B ’AﬁﬁZﬁI@ (44,964) (17,996)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AP 2B 2 2,256 1,174
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ARERMIBEBHBLE - 342
Under provision of tax expenses in prior year —_E4FERHIARM S EETE - 1
Income tax credit FIEHEE (42,708) (16,479)
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10. LOSSES PER SHARE

The calculation of basic losses per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$116,204,000 (2015: HK$58,027,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year of 1,322,801,000. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year was adjusted to
reflect the bonus element arising from the share placing and
share subscription as set out in notes 26(b) and 26(c) (2015:
1,115,755,000 ordinary shares which were represented to
reflect the bonus element arising from the share placing and
share subscription occurred during the year ended 31 March

2016).

Diluted losses per share for years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015 are the same as the basic losses per share as the
Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding

during both years.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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11. EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND 11. ESREEEERNS
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(a) Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: () E=MeHBELT:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances scheme
Fees and benefits contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e MR
we B\BA GEARGEIMR %)
FET FHET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-Z—~%
ZA=t+-HLEE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Chua Hwa Por! BERLAE - 603 2 605
Dr. Liu Hua' MEEE L - 390 - 390
Mr. Hu Yebi? HEE K& - 228 12 240
Mr. Liu Xueheng? Sl - 192 - 192
Mr. Mung Kin Keung? SEBRRE 13 - - 13
Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan S 60 - 3 63
Non-executive directors: HHTEE:
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon* HE 1S o A 15 - - 15
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric® R A S 19 - - 19

Independent non-executive directors: BV TEE -

Ms. Liu Yan? £l 139 - - 139
Mr. Chan Wai Man® BR (8 R 5 A° 45 - - 45
Mr. Mao Kangfu® BRALAES 75 - - 75
Mr. Tsui Sai Ming, Steven’ EutEty 30 - - 30
Mr. Ng Chun Chuen, David® RIRR LA 38 - - 38
Dr. Gao Bin® mEELS 79 - 9 88

513 1,413 26 1,952
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11. EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND M. EEREEEEMNE @
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: () =E=BaeBBEWT: (&)
(Continued)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances scheme
Fees and benefits contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e AR
e 'R RRE IR k)
FET FET FET TET
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-Z-hF
ZA=T—HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Hu Yebi? HEE KL - 165 3 168
Mr. Liu Xueheng? EES - 165 3 168
Mr. Mung Kin Keung? SE®EE 60 - - 60
Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan* Som X 176 - 6 182
Mr. Ha Wing Ho, Peter? Mok & S A 17 - - 17
Non-executive directors: FHITEE
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon* BB e e 60 - - 60
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric® R A KA 60 - - 60
Independent non-executive directors: B HHTEE -
Mr. Chan Wai Man® B8R 5 &° 60 - - 60
Mr. Tsui Sai Ming, Steven’ GRutbitay 60 - - 60
Mr. Ng Chun Chuen, David® RIS &S 60 - - 60
553 330 12 895
Notes: B 5
1 Dr. Liu Hua and Mr. Chua Hwa Por were appointed as ! MBS £ ] B EE R S 4 5 RIR
the executive directors of the Company on 8 January ZE-REF-ANBRZFE
2016 and 19 January 2016 respectively. —RNFE-AT+NBEZEAXR
NERITES-
2 Mr. Hu Yebi and Mr. Liu Xueheng were appointed as 2 T EEERIBEEER
the executive directors of the Company on 11 July T-NE+A+—BEZER
2014. RRBPITES-
3 Ms. Liu Yan was appointed as the independent non- 3 RZT—RAFXA+NB" 2
executive director of the Company and Mr. Mung BT EEERARBBEILIE
Kin Keung resigned as the executive director of the BITEERFEATERER
Company on 18 June 2015. NERITES-
Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 N
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11. EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND 1. EEREEEEMES @)
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: () =EEWEHENOT: (&)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

4 Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan resigned as the executive
director of the Company and Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon
resigned as the non-executive director of the Company
on 30 June 2015.

° Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric resigned as the non-executive
director of the Company on 22 July 2015.

E Mr. Mao Kangfu was appointed and Mr. Chan Wai Man
resigned as the independent non-executive directors of
the Company on 5 January 2016.

7 Mr. Tsui Sai Ming, Steven resigned as the independent
non-executive director of the Company on 30
September 2015.

8 Dr. Gao Bin was appointed and Mr. Ng Chun Chuen,
David resigned as the independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 20 November 2015.

9 Mr. Ha Wing Ho, Peter resigned as the executive
director of the Company on 11 July 2014.

Wist: (4&)

RZZE—RAFSNA=+H T
M EEBTARNRNITES
Ko B0 8 45 o A BHE AN A A FEHR
TESF-

MERERENR-_ZT-—HFLA
ZTZHBEARBERITE
=o

RZZE—XRNFE-AHEH BFE
REEBZERRERE LB
EARBBILIENITES-

BREBREER_FT—AFNA
=T HBEARRRBILIENTT
5%

RZZT—RAF+—A=+8"
PEETEZARRKRRALE
BEARRBYIFERITES-

BKFREER-_ZT-—HNFLA
T-HBEEARRNTES-

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EfUBRSHHMAL

The emoluments of the five highest individuals in the FR - AEBRUSSFMALE
Group for the year included one (2015: one) director (=R —fU)E=#
whose emoluments are included in the analysis ZHEBREREXS TR -#TH
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining four L (ZZ—AF 0L ZaFMA

(2015: four) highest paid individuals are as follows: THRFERAZHES0OT:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
L —z-u4
FET FHET

Salaries, allowances and e 2 REMET

other benefits 1,792 1,179
Defined contribution costs FE KA 203 48
1,995 1,227

BREBRZERERAA

TE-ABRER
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11. EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

11.

BEENSEEEMNE @)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EfUEREHFMAL @)
The number of non-director individuals fell within the REEMENFTIEECIFES
following emolument band: AT AE:
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—REF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 4 4
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENSENREEREZMEN T T
management were within in the following band: PIEE 2 AB:
2016 2015
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EF M —E-nF
A N ¢
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 14 10
(c) No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors () ~&EEHEARSIESHEMAL

or any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. % BERRE
Furniture
and fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HERR
EEEER
HERE WARERE RE @t
FHET FHET FET FAET
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—MEF
mA—A - 31 - 31
Additions NE - 122 - 122
Exchange realignment M 3, 38 5 - (2) - (2)

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R _-ZT—A4F

ZA=+—HEk
E—HFEMA—H - 151 - 151

Additions "E 2,643 6,748 3,075 12,466
Exchange realignment M 5, 38 2 - (5) - (5)
At 31 March 2016 R-T—RF

=HA E+_E| 2,643 6,894 3,075 12,612
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
At 1 April 2014 R-E—m4E

mA—H - 15 - 15
Charge for the year FEMXZ - 16 - 16
Exchange realignment I 3, 38 5 - (1) - (1)

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 W -ZT—H4F

ZA=+—HEk
—hRFMNA—H - 30 - 30

Charge for the year FEREZ 135 212 76 423
Exchange realignment i 5 & - (2) - (2)
At 31 March 2016 NZZE—REF

—A=+—8 135 240 76 451
Net carrying amount BREFE
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—REF

=A=+—H 2,508 6,654 2,999 12,161
At 31 March 2015 A S

—A=+—H - 121 - 121

BERERZRERAR
T ARER
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The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining
activities in the location of Nogoonnuur Soum and Tsengel
Soum of Bayan-Ulgii Aimag in Mongolia, and have remaining
legal lives of 15 to 20 years, expiring in July 2031, March 2033,
December 2035 and July 2036, respectively. The mining licenses
are issued by Mineral Resources and Petroleum Authority of
Mongolia and may be extended for two successive additional
periods of 20 years each. In the opinion of the directors, the
application for extension is procedural and the Group should
be able to renew its mining licenses at minimal charges, until
all the proven and probable minerals have been mined. In
2013, the Group appointed a qualified mineral technical adviser
to prepare a resource estimation and engaged a Mongolian
professional firm to review and update the feasibility study
report and the environmental impact assessment report on the
above tungsten mines. No active mining operation of the Group
has taken place yet.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

13. MINING RIGHTS 13. ERIEHE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—XREF —T-RHF
FRT FAT
Opening net carrying amount FY 2 EEFE 671,624 737,561
Impairment loss A EE (217,083) (65,937)
Closing net carrying amount FRZEEEE 454,541 671,624

REEEITREHEEEBIEEKNERLER
MEkERETETRBEEES 2 BEF - Tt
EEFHAETRAFZE-+F H3IR=Z
=—F+ A - ZT==F=Z/A-ZZT=F
FH+ZARZTE=R"FLtAER -BEH
KU BIBEEHEEERRABEER
%ﬁvTéﬁ%%Wm'iﬁmi 5%

RE BAEEHREATKEBER B
E@F&“Ti HEE AR R M ETR EARK
Z!S’Eiﬁﬁﬁ% AR fhET 2 TEE B B R
BlE-RZT—=F AEBCEZE—EE
éﬁ%{i&%—:&m@?ﬁéﬁ%‘%ﬁ%?ﬂﬁ&éﬂ%—
MELEXQAFEMRFEHBE SR
Z AT R RS RIRE R AWM -
REEE M AREITIERTIEER -
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A

13. MINING RIGHTS (continued)

In May 2013, in response to a letter issued by a Mongolian
Province Governor which required the Group to make
submission on the timing of commencement of mining
operations or otherwise certain mining licenses might
the Group entered into a memorandum of
understanding with China Metallurgical Geology Bureau of
Shandong (the “Contractor”) on 22 May 2013, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to engage the Contractor to conduct
mining activities, including development and exploitation of all

be revoked,

of its Mongolian tungsten mines. Subsequently on 2 October
2013, the Group engaged Mongolia Zhenyuan Company
Limited (“Mongolia Zhenyuan”), an associated company of the
Contractor, to conduct mining area geological survey, tunnel
investigation and sample collection. However, the Group and
Mongolia Zhenyuan were unable to conclude a formal and
legally binding cooperation agreement eventually. In current
year, the Group engaged a mining professional to prepare an
updated feasibility study report for the tungsten mines and the
directors are actively exploring the optimal way to commence
the production of the mines. Based on the foregoing, the
directors expect that the exploitation of the mines will take
place no later than the end of 2018.

With reference to the opinion from the Group’s Mongolian
legal advisers dated 31 May 2016, the directors are of the
opinion that the Group is in compliance with all laws and
governmental rules and regulations in Mongolia and the
Group’s mining rights are still in effect and in good standing as
at the end of the reporting period.

13.

M

TERE ()

E-Z-=F1A REE-—E2XHEE
EHERAEBRIHRRBEEBRER
BRIFTgEE M@ E THEAR 2 JfF - ©
CE-=FHEAZ+TZH FAEEEDE
REMWERERBILERR (ERE])FIZ—
ﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁ%b$%55ﬁ%§%

BRETRIELE BREMAENFERE

ERELABEHE-HBRR _T—=F1+A=
H AEBZEABBH IBLERARRAIE
TERAR ([REETETREELE
HE - BEREREAWRE AR AEE
HRH ETRARBEEKIER R AERL
RNZEEBE - REAFE AEEDZ
B2 REEEASUBHERE—MDEN
B RIATIE R s RE S ER GRS A 6
FANFAEBBELUEE-ERN Ll - EFE
HZERUSTER T \FRETH

B

BREAEERHBEERBRR _Z—X
Eﬁﬁ—+*5¥ﬁz Eﬂ%%mﬁK

BRERHBEZMBEERRBFHRAIR
ﬁ%’ﬂ$%lz%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ$%
RBEMRGFE-

BREBREZERERAR 93 .
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13. MINING RIGHTS (continued)

At 31 March 2016, the directors re-assessed the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit that holds mining rights
(the “Mining CGU") by using fair value less costs of disposal,
which is derived by using discounted cash flow analysis. The
discount cash flow analysis has incorporated assumptions that
a typical market participant would use in estimating the fair
value of the Mining CGU. The discount cash flows analysis
uses cash flow projection for a period of 3 to 7 years and the
discount rates applied to the cash flow projection are 21.27%-
21.83% (2015: 22.71%-24.63%). In determining the discount
rates, the weighted average cost of capital was used, which
is determined with reference to the industry capital structure
of market comparables with mining projects, and have taken
into account the specific risks encountered by the Mining CGU.
Other key assumptions adopted include estimated selling price
with nil growth rate, industry average gross margin, estimated
mine reserve based on technical assessment reports and the
expectation for market development. The fair value of the
Mining CGU is a level 3 fair value measurement. There was no

change to the valuation technique during the year.

With reference to the assessment, the directors are of the view
that the recoverable amount of the Mining CGU is estimated
to be HK$361,383,000 (2015: HK$524,195,000) and therefore
an impairment loss (net of tax) of HK$162,812,000 (2015:
HK$49,453,000) in respect of the mining rights was identified
for the year ended 31 March 2016. The impairment loss is
allocated to write down the carrying amount of the mining
rights by HK$217,083,000 (2015: HK$65,937,000) together
with a tax effect of HK$54,271,000 (2015: HK$16,484,000)
credited to profit or loss. The impairment is primarily due to
decline in the selling price of tungsten concentrate products

during the year.
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13.

RIERE (@)

R-TE—RNFEZA=+—H EECEB
KAATFEREERNAEFIMHFER
BEZASEAEM ([RBERSELS
fI])zel e &5 WRADHBERES R
EOMHESL - MBRBELREDNE W
ANHATIZESEEBREFRERSE
BN ATFERKBZEBER -THRES
REMTEAZELFHEZEERE
FEARBRARREERERANZFTRER
21.27% - 21.83% (ZZE—HRF:22.71%
— 24.63% ) c REETEITIR K E - B AN
EFHEARKA W2 EAFRBEE 2™
BALBRIBE ZITEEREBET Rit &
HERSEABMAT 2B FRR - Tk
Mz HEMBEEREBETERRZ2(GE
BE-TEFHEMNE RBEZMTEHRE
ZIEFTEERBRMSER 2TEH - HIE
REELEENZATEDRTEAZZE
BRI FE AT EES) -

REFGH EERAE KERSELS
iz 2 A7 Y [5] & %8 {4 &t 4361,383,000%8
T (=—ZF—HA%:524,195,0008 7T) °
Bt - RBE-_FT—X<"F=ZA=+—8
LtFERREERERREESE (OB
18) A162,812,0008 L (ZE— A F:
49,453,000/ 7T ) © 5% kB &5 18 T 5 B A
15 BT 2 BR T E #U51217,083,000/8 7T
(ZZ—FH%:65,937,00087C) (ERG
AIB2E 2 BT 5 254,271,0008 70 (= F
—HF 16,484,000 L) ) REEZER
SIEEEMZEEBNRFEN TR
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RELE 2=

RZE—AREF=ZA=1+—RAZWBAAZ

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 are as

follows:

Place of incorporation/

HEMT

Percentage of equity

registration and Issued share/paid- up attributable to
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
WELEERE TMAL/EAMRCEHYE  BRORG/BAZMES ARAEERBEEDL TEREHR
Direct Indirect
EE Gk
Bestway Group International Limited  British Virgin Islands/ Us$1,100* 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
RBRUESE/EE 1,100% 7T * 100 - REAR
Wide Flourish Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
BERREBRAF EBEAHES (E 100 - EEEH
Tectron Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
RBRUESE/EE (B 100 - REAR
Best Future Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
ERREBRAT EBEAHES (E 100 - EEEH
Tai United Asset British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
Management Limited
EBRAFE EH 100 - EEXH
Tai United Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
EBRAFE EH 100 - EEXH
Tai United Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
EBRAFE EH 100 - EEXH
Tai United Capital Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
EBRAFE EH 100 - EEXH
Best Shield Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands Us$51 - 100 Dormant
EBRAFE S1%TT - 100 EEEH

* The investment cost was fully impaired in prior years.

* BRARKRR E—FEBERE.

BREBZRERAT
ZTNRER
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. RNBRE 2Es® (&)
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and Issued share/paid- up attributable to
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
WEDR BB EMRYL/ EMREEnE CRIRG/BHIMELR ARRARERERDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
B B
Prolific Rich Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Mongolia
LHRERAF EEEAEE/ 54 1% - 100 ®REER
Grand Shining Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Mongolia
SMEBRARA EEEAEE/ 54 1% - 100 ®REER
Giant Silver Limited Hong Kong/The PRC HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and
trading business
FRERAF B/ HE 157 - 100 BEEBRREHEH
Happy Trip Limited Hong Kong HK$1,200,002 - 100 Dormant
KEERAT BB 1,200,002/ 70 - 100 EmEG
Sino United Investment Management ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trading business

Limited (formerly known as Happy
Concord Ltd)

AMBEEEFR AR EE T - 100 B5%H
(#1178 AHappy Concord Ltd)

raeE (R BRRA The PRC HK$10,000,000 - 100 Trading business
(Formerly known as Best Future
Technology Company Limited)*

EReR (RIDARRE (7 E 10,000,00075 70 - 100 E5%%
RERRER (RIDBRAF) *

Sino United Energy Pte. Limited Singapore US$25,000,000 - 100 Commodity trading
business and security
trading business

A 25,000,000 7T - 100 ARXSEBLREFRFE
%

96 Bestway International Holdings Limited
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Percentage of equity

14. REEB AR 2R (&)

registration and Issued share/paid- up attributable to
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
WEARERE AL/ EMREERE EBRTRG/BEIRELR ARREERER DL TEEH
Direct Indirect
¢ [k
Tai United Assets Management Singapore US$2,500,000 - 100 Inactive
Pte Limited
g 2,500,000 ¢ - 100 EX%
EREZAREERERDA) The PRC RMBA45,000,000 - 100 Security trading business
HE AR #45,000,0007 - 100 BEHARHES
FAREREEERERDRA" The PRC RMB300,000,000 - 100 Security trading business
HE A K#300,000,0007T - 100 BEARHES
RYNERBRELEABRAR The PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Security trading business
HE AR 5,000,0007T - 100 BEHARHES
TREREEFRAAN The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 75  Trading business
HE AR #10,000,0007 - 75 BHEH
Kainarwolfram LLC Mongolia US$100,000 - 100 Mining and exploitation of
natural resources
) 100,000% ¢ - 100 HBERHEXALR
lkh Uuliin Erdenes LLC Mongolia US$100,000 - 100 Mining and exploitation of
natural resources
5h 100,000% ¢ - 100 HBERHEXALR
* The Company is incorporated in the PRC as a wholly-owned * ZATRPEGERK Y A —HINEEE
foreign enterprise. -
# The Company is incorporated in the PRC as a limited liability # ZARNPREMK L ABERAR -

company.

The financial statements of the above subsidiaries were audited
by BDO Limited, for the statutory purpose and/or for the
purpose of the Group's consolidation.

LB AR MM B RE I ABTELER
SR EBABRRREZ UEEE
Ak, SMEAEEEHRAE-

BREBZRERAT
T RNWER
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING 15. BFEENEMEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—RF —E—hHF
Fi#T Fit
Equity securities measured at fair value BRAFEFEZRAZS
— listed in Hong Kong —REELT 49,600 -
— listed in the PRC —RHE LT 711,013 -
760,613 -

The listed equity securities held by the Group are mainly in
Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group maintains a portfolio of
investments in terms of industry distribution such as financial
institutions and property developers. The fair values of all listed
securities are determined with reference to the quoted market

bid price available on the relevant stock exchanges.

As at 31 March 2016, certain financial assets held for trading
of the Group with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$150,923,000 were pledged to secure the margin financing

of approximately HK$40,245,000 (note 21).

16. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE CONTRACT

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had an undelivered metal-
related contract amounting to US$9,712,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$75,266,000). The financial derivative
contract was measured at fair value, with net fair value loss
of approximately HK$2,234,000 charged to the profit or loss
in current year. The contract was subsequently closed and

delivered on 6 April 2016.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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16.

AEBFEZ EMBRAZHFGERUNE
ARTE - AEEEF - ESRSBRESE
RYERMERSTEIMIRERB I
BLEMRBHEZATFEDEZ2ZERBESR
SRRz TEENEEE -

R-B—XNEZA=+—0 A£EEM@
fE#7150,923,0008 L2 A THEEEHR
& @A E B B EL40,245,00058 7T 2 R
FBLRE 2 (FIEE21) ©

TRITESHN

R-EB-XNE=ZA=+—0 A£@EAH
AR BHEBE L E%E9,712,000% T
(HBZE 1M 4975,266,000/870) ° & B HT £
AR AFENE A ERIBFEL
2,234,000 8 LIV AFE 2 18 W0k o
AHREBRKERR T —RNFMNANA
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

A

17. EWESERX

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as of the end

of reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

AEERHERRZEWEZERILER
BE RO T :

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EB—RE —E-REF

FET FHET

Within 30 days 30 636 1,170
31-90 days 31£290H 768 1,625
91-120 days 912120H 186 -
Over 120 days HBiE120H 1,681 -
3,271 2,795

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. Normal credit period
ranging from 30 to 90 days is allowed on sales of goods (2015:
30 to 90 days).

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables that are

FEWREZGEREFAERE HHEERZ R
ZEHN T30 E0R (ZE—HE:30
HZE90H) -

WARBAR BRE N EEREE SRR

not considered to be impaired is as follows: BREe AT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —E-REF
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired i H R R RLE 1,404 2,795
0-90 days past due @ HEI0Z=90H 186 -
91-180 days past due @ EI91E180H 1,681 -
3,271 2,795

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there
were no recent history of default. Based on past experience,
the management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

EEHMERBE 2 W E 5 MRk Ty BT
VTEEBHOELCBZZRBITPER-
BREATER EEERR ARNZEH
M EREERUBEREHMERKRRR
RABEZ KD - B AR ZFERIED
MERE FAEBEYERZEEHRTEE
Al 45 3 g

BREBREZERERAR 99‘

el RPN XS
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18.

19.

20.

INVENTORIES 18. FE&
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—xF —E R4
FET FET

Goods held for resale HEEN (BAEEERE)

(including medical equipment) 845 1,277
DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19. &€ HEWHRERFEMSR

PREPAYMENTS

]

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-AF —z-n%F
TR FAR
Prepayments TEfT RIA 1,326 1,739
Other receivables H b & W sk IR 2,322 137
Deposits paid for investments HEZN2®mE 48,981 -
Rental deposits ek 5,120 -
57.749 1,876
Less: Deposit paid for an investment classified & : DA AIEREEEE 2 &

under non-current assets (note 30) EY 2 e (HEE30) (10,000) -
47,749 1,876

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 200 REREFRELER

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group represent the cash,
bank balances and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The bank balances and short-
term bank deposits carry interest at the prevailing market rates
with average interest rate of 0.02% and 2.00% (2015: 0.01%
and no short-term bank deposits) per annum respectively.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank balance and
cash denominated in RMB amounting to approximately
HK$309,304,000 (2015: HK$14,130,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2016, certain bank balances and short-
term bank deposits amounting to approximately
HK$81,464,000 were pledged for the Group’s banking
facilities of US$400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,100,000,000) (note 21).
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REBCzReRERRSERERS R
THRBEVAEBPRA=EASEE 2
MHRITER - ZRITEB R EHRRTT
R BIE ¥ 19 F F%0.02% K%2.00% (=
T—AF:0.01%REEHETHFHR) 2R
TSN EREE -

RZE—RFZA=Z+—H X&EH
BEUARBAEZRTESRE S
#4) /309,304,000 L (& — A F:
14,130,000/ 70) - AR A] A | A #%
BEMER - AR LIBINE R AR
P& ) R B9 7838 <P R BB 9846 2 SNEE
Bl 37 Rl KO AR o

RZEBE-—RNEZA=+—B A&£EH
81,464,000 7L v & TIR1T4E R R HI R
117 EVE A7 5 400,000,000% 7T (48
Z£ 74 493,100,000,000/8 7T) ZRITRLE 2
I (HFEE21) ©
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21.

22.

23.

BORROWINGS 21.

The margin financing are secured by the Group's listed equity
securities amounting to approximately HK$150,923,000 (note
15), repayable on demand and interest bearing at commercial
rates at 5.0% per annum for RMB account and 6.0% per
annum for HK$ account.

The currency profiles of the Group’s margin financing accounts
are as follows:

BE

RFES B AR EE S 549150,923,000
BT ERAE SRR (ME15) - A8
REREERREEFNES0% (AR
BEFPME)M6.0% (RABKERFME)

e

rEBEZRESREFP ZEBHE AW
T

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-RE —E—RF

FiBxT FiET

HK$ BT 26,456 -
RMB AR 13,789 -
40,245 -

The Group's banking facilities of US$400,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,100,000,000) were pledged by certain
bank balances and short-term bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$81,464,000 (note 20). As at 31 March 2016,
the banking facilities were not utilised.

AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING 22.

COMPANY

Amount due to ultimate holding company was unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

AN £ [E400,000,000E ¢ (HEERD
3,100,000,000/8 7T) Z $RITRLE Jy B & T
IRITHE R R HAER 1T 17 5K 4081,464,000%
TLAEEA (MH3E20) R =T —RF = A
=t+—H ZBRITRHEHKESA-

BN RKERARIE

e RRIZEIR A
ARBREE -

AIRIATEER 28K

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 23. EstEEREMENSRE
PAYABLES

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—XRE —E—hHE
FHBT FAET
Accrued liabilities Etas 2,121 1,150
Other payables Hh FE A FRIE 277 662
2,398 1,812
EREBRERERAF

—EARER
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24.

25.

LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING 24, REBRERRAZERNK
COMPANY
The loan from ultimate holding company was unsecured, REZKERABIZERDEER B
interest bearing at 4.5% per annum from 1 April 2016 and T RNFMNA—BRIZFH KL% B
repayable within eighteen months since the drawdown date. REARERAAHRTNAEARNEE-
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25. EEREEE
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements ARERERBEREHARNERAZRLT
thereon during the current and prior reporting periods are as MEBEREZHFBOT:
follows:
Fair value
adjustment on
mining rights
REEZ
ATEBE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2014 R-Z—mEMA—H 163,913
Credited to profit or loss (note 9) sFAIEZE (KTEE9) (16,484)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE—RF=A=+—HK
—ZT—-hFMA—H 147,429
Credited to profit or loss (note 9) FFAER (MFE9) (54,271)
At 31 March 2016 RITB—RE=ZA=+—H 93,158

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using the principal tax rate of 25%
(2015: 25%).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had estimated unused tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$43,585,000
(2015: HK$43,585,000) subject to the agreement of the Inland
Revenue Department that are available for offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The estimated tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

RIEF B R B 8 &R R E AT K25%
(ZZE—RAF:25% )28 tEERHER-

R-_ZTE—-—XNE=-ZA=Z+—8 K&
EREBELEZHAXDABES
B #)43,585,0008 (= — A F:
43,585,000 7T ) (FREHRE) AJAMN
88 R SR SR B3 F o 53 R R 2R s ) SRR
AR WERZEREBBER
IEIEFL TR B 2 o {f 5T 2 B T8 8518 7T & R A7
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25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 25. EEBIEAE (&)

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has deferred tax liabilities WNoE—RNEZA=+—H A&E=EHE
of approximately HK$1,178,000 (2015: Nil) in respect of the HHERBARRI BNz EREER
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with MREMAE R IE A E491,178,00008
undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries which have not been T(ZTE—RF:8\)FIERER - R Z
recognised. No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised EZERARTEHIEEET AN R EEA
in respect of these differences because the Group is in a EHZEMB AR KREHE  BREE
position to control the dividend policies of its subsidiaries and ERIEAGHA R 2 KRED -

it is probable that such difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A
Number of shares Amount
'000 HK$'000
RHBEE &8
F AR FET
Ordinary shares at BREE.SE T ZEER
HK$0.05 per share
Authorised: JATE
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 RAZZ—MNFMA—H -
and 2016 TE-RFRZE—ARF=ZA=1+—H 34,566,667 1,728,333
Issued and fully paid: BEEITEER:
At 1 April 2014 RZZT—MNFMNA—H 895,913 44,796
Issue of new shares (note (a)) BT RS (MEE@)) 150,000 7,500
At 31 March 2015 RZTE—HF=A=+—H 1,045,913 52,296
Issue of new shares BATH IR (M EE(b) K (c))
(notes (b) and (c)) 455,180 22,758
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"F=ZA=+—H 1,501,093 75,054
'000 HK$'000
F AR FET
Preference shares at BREE0.05B T ZEBER
HK$0.05 per share
Authorised: JERE
At 1 April 2014, 31 March, 2015 RZ-_Z—MNFMHA—H
and 2016 TE-RFRZE—ARF=ZA=1+—H 5,433,333 271,666
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER :
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 R-Z—WN&EMA—H - —T—HEFK
and 2016 —E-RF=ZA=+—H - -
ERERERERAD

TE-ABRER
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

On 15 May 2014, the Company completed the
allotment and issue of 150,000,000 new ordinary
shares at HK$0.56 per share. The net proceeds derived
from the subscription amounted to HK$84,000,000
and resulted in the increase in share capital of
HK$7,500,000 and share premium of HK$76,500,000.
Details of the subscription were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 15 April 2014 and the
announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014.

On 13 June 2015, the Company and a placing agent
entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place a maximum
of 205,000,000 placing shares to independent investors
at a price of HK$0.88 per share. On 6 July 2015, the
conditions set out on the placing agreement have
been fulfilled and the placing was completed. The
net proceeds derived from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$177,698,000 and resulted in the
increase in share capital of HK$10,249,000 and share
premium of HK$167,449,000. Details of the placing
have been set out in the Company’'s announcements
dated 15 June 2015 and 6 July 2015.

On 11 November 2015, the Company and a subscriber
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue 250,180,000 new shares to the subscriber at
a price of HK$0.66 per share. The completion of the
subscription was took place on 30 November 2015. The
net proceeds derived from the subscription amounted
to approximately HK$165,119,000 and resulted in
the increase in share capital of HK$12,509,000 and
share premium of HK$152,610,000. Details of the
subscription have been set out in the Company's
announcements dated 12 November 2015 and 30
November 2015.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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26.

R A (4#)

(a)

RZE—NFRATHB ARQF
SERK R & R%0.567% Jr fic B & B 1T
150,000,000 8% 7 & i@ A% - R HE =
TE FT1S 308 5 58 584,000,000/ 7T
I 38 F{% 7N #E Hn7,500,00078 7T &
B 17 45 876,500,000/ 7T > R BB =
BZHBRRARGAHAE-T
—FMNA+HHZEEH NIRRT
BfA-—ZT—NMERATHEAZA

EA e

R-_E—RAFANAT=ZB AR
AE-FZRERBI LRSS H
FOBY ARRACEBRHGRE
EEROSSB L EREERS
205,000,0000% fic & i 15 T B 2%
EE-R_ZT—HF+LANH &
EHEAE R EER KRS
FHEETEK REFEMBRIEF
EE#)/5177,698,0008 7T I B HIK
R HN10,249,000/8 7T M AL 17 ) (B
167,449,000/8 JL o e & £ 1B 2 7F
BEHNARRAHA-ZT—AF
NATRERER-ZZE—AF+ANH
ZRERN-

RZE—RAF+—A+—H &
AREHEREFITLRBE DR &
o ARBREBERGERERESR
0.66/8 T 2 Ef& MR 77 i Rk
2%17250,180,0000% #r i% 17 - R 8
FEEIWN -_Z—RE+—-A=+
AHEK -REZEMBSREFE
49 7/4165,119,0005% 7T I & B % K
# 4112,509,00058 7T K f% 17 3 B
152,610,000 Lo REEH 2 7F
BEHNARRAHA-ZT—AF
+—A+=-HE=ZZE—RHF+—A4
=THEZRAER-
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27. RESERVES 27. f##E
Group rE
Details of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for AEEBZFHeBERERTFERBASF
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated EZEZBERUBMEENBREER Y
statement of changes in equity on page 51 of the financial EFERNET] .
statements.
Company PN
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHRE T Ri5HE it
(P 5E(a)) (B 5% (b)) (M3t ())
FHET FHT FHET FHET
At 1 April 2014 RZE—HFEMNA—H 760,722 159,393 (184,967) 735,148
Issue of shares (note 26(a)) 1T
(it 5¥26(a) ) 76,500 - - 76,500
Loss for the year FREE - - (236,585) (236,585)
At 31 March 2015 and RZZE—RF
1 April 2015 ZA=+—HkK
“Z—-RFNA—H 837,222 159,393 (421,552) 575,063
Issue of shares (notes 26(b) 1T
and (c)) (BFEE26(b) K (0)) 320,059 - - 320,059
Loss for the year FREE - - (182,494) (182,494)
At 31 March 2016 RZB-R"%F
=A=+—H 1,157,281 159,393 (604,046) 712,628

BREBREZERERAR 105‘
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27. RESERVES (continued)

Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Share premium
Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

(b) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation prior to its public listing on 2 October
1995 and represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the former holding company of the Group
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation, over the
nominal value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

(c) Accumulated losses

Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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(a)

(b)

B 42 5 18
RBRASHEBHEE A
ERAR

AEBZ BGABREAAKER - AR
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A

28. THE COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF 28. QB HBARR T
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-RE —E-REF
B FHERT FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREHE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - WEREE 6,386 47
Interests in subsidiaries NI NI 360,080 -
Deposit s 10,000 -
376,466 47
Current assets REEE
Deposits, other receivables R H A e MR IE R RS
and prepayments A 6,866 7
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U2 BT J&8 R B FRIR 375,460 545,464
Cash and cash equivalents RehFRREIER 114,930 82,991
497,256 628,462
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables [fE&t & & & H fth fE 1 5008 1,242 1,150
Amount due to ultimate holding FE A S A5 12 IR A BIFRIA
company 4,798 -
6,040 1,150
Net current assets REEEFE 491,216 627,312
Non-current liability FREBAE
Loan from ultimate holding company KRB &&IER QB ZER 80,000 -
80,000 -
Net assets EEZEE 787,682 627,359
EQUITY e
Share capital f& 7 26 75,054 52,296
Reserves i 27 712,628 575,063
Total equity ERBRE 787,682 627,359

Meng Zhaoyi Liu Hua
=RE )

Director Director
BE BE

ERERERER
=%
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29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which the Group is a lessee
are as follows:

29. REHNEARE

RB|ERR NEBRBRETATHELZEHE
W REBEERABA)ARKERSN

REFEWT

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

—®-—AF —=-5%

FHER FAL

Within one year —FA 17,804 239
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFRF

(BRERMSF) 44,370 -

62,174 239

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for its office premises. The leases typically run for an
initial period of three to five years (2015: one year). None of
the leases include contingent rental.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

A

30. BAREIE

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—XE —E—AHEF

FExT FAT

Commitment for an acquisition (note) W BB = TE 7 A (KIFE) 46,000 -

Note:

On 29 December 2015, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with vendors (the “Original Vendors”) to acquire the entire
equity interest in Hui Kai Holdings Limited (“Hui Kai Holdings”) at the
cash consideration of HK$170 million (the “December Acquisition”).
The principal activities of Hui Kai Holdings are mainly engaged in
securities and futures dealing, assets management and money lending
business. A refundable deposit amounting to HK$10,000,000 has
been paid to the vendor in January 2016 in respect of the December
Acquisition (note 19). Subsequent to the signing of the December
Agreement, in light of the high volatility of the stock market, the parties
to the December Agreement believed that it is in the interests of the
parties to take more time to review the receivables of a subsidiary of
Hui Kai Holdings, namely Hui Kai Securities Limited, with a view to
ascertaining with higher accuracy the amount of receivables that Hui
Kai Securities Limited would have at completion. As such, on 18 January
2016, the Group entered into a termination agreement with the Original
Vendors to terminate the December Acquisition (the “Termination
Agreement”), and separately entered into a new agreement with
Hui Kai Holdings, being the new vendor, to acquire the entire equity
interest in certain subsidiaries of Hui Kai Holdings for an aggregate cash
consideration up to HK$56 million (the “New Agreement”), and in the
meantime has an option to acquire the entire equity interest in Hui Kai
Holdings within 12 months (the “Call Option Deed”). Details of the
Termination Agreement, the New Agreement and the Call Option Deed
have been set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 January
2016. Given certain conditions precedent has not yet fulfilled, the
acquisition has yet completed at the end of the reporting period.

FieE:

RZZ—HE+-_A-+HhB AEEEEH
(TFRE 1) ET32#2170,000,0005% 7T 2 3R & R
BUREEIIERER AR (TESIZER]) 2250
BiEzEEHE (TR - EgiZR2
FEEBABARIERS LEEERREE
B-BAERZZ—AF— AR+ Al
10,000,000/ L AT iR EZ © (HIFE19) cREZE
T AR ERREMSRELRS +=A
WHEZATHFRE TR ZRHEEENTR
MiE AR (BIESNEFARAR) 2 FEBGRIE
HEENFHEMRA BN 2 BKRREZ
BEBSE NFATOFZAE Bt R =
T-RNE-—A+N\B FAEBEHREFHFI LK
I+ A Z &b (TR IEHE]) -5
Rl B & 75 [E $ 4% AR 5] 37 ¥ i % /56,000,000
VBT 2 4R R S 118 Uk B BB L1 AR S T T B A |
ZEBREzHHE ([Finzl) RANEES
BN+ ZE A R URBEE T AR 2 & SR AR
(TREHERE]) - R FinE RRE
HEREFBECHNARFBEHAZT—X
F—A+TNAZAE -AREBETFRAEHER
R BB S ER RS AR S AR TR -

BREBREZERERAR 109‘
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31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the following transactions were carried out by the

Group with related parties:

(i)

(ii)

On 3 March 2016, the ultimate holding
company agreed to grant an unsecured revolving
credit facility amounting to approximately
HK$1,000,000,000 in total to the Group.
According to the loan agreement and the
supplemental agreement dated 3 March 2016,
the unsecured revolving credit facility is interest
bearing at 4.5% per annum from 1 April 2016
and repayable within eighteen months since
the drawdown date. The interest during the
period from 3 March 2016 to 31 March 2016
amounting to approximately HK$2,187,000
was waived by the ultimate holding company
pursuant to the supplemental agreement. As at
31 March 2016, approximately HK$877,040,000
(note 24) of the unsecured revolving credit
facility was utilised.

Rental expenses for the period from 1 April 2015
to 30 May 2015 amounting to approximately
HK$65,000 (2015: HK$340,000) paid to a
related company, in which Mr. Mung Kin Keung
and Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan were common
directors prior to their resignation date on
18 June 2015 and 30 June 2015 respectively,
were made according to the terms of the lease
agreement.

(b) The compensation of key management personnel,
who are also the directors of the Company, has been
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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BEEALXRS

(a)

(b)
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W-ZE—XE=ZR=8"
BERERAGDIAEERET
AEBE-—Z2HAEY
1,000,000,0005% 7T 2 # i
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2 E R kA7
EERLERERBER
—E—ARFWMNA B
FHEL5%ERARE
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B REBEHEAHBZE A=
/\ﬂE Hfaii_7
—A~NFE=ZA=+—HALH
2 F B #92,187,0007% 7T
EESEIER AR R R
—E-RF=A= ‘f“ =N
49877,040,0005 7T (B 5
24) 7 SR R AR E A

BEEEFHA-
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32.

33.

MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in notes 22, 24 and 31 to the financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements, or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were
entered into or subsisted during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the directors meet periodically to analyse
and formulate measures to manage the Group's exposure to
the financial risk.

Generally, the Group employs a conservative strategy regarding
its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to market
risk is kept at a minimum level, the Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The most significant financial risks to
which the Group is exposed are described below.

32.

33.

EERRG REHEHENPZ
EXER

BB SRR 5522 24 R31FAH B E SN
ARARRG BEERE WERAQRE
BRIk B FARREEEELME
BEIMNEARSZZEBERS THHA
o

BBEREER A FETE

AR B R A A E A R T A&
RUBEAR - MBRREBET SRR (B2
FEONGE L AR E R R EREAR) AR
EERBRIMRBIERR NEBYEEE
ZRBERBRERES AN EFETE
HISBTgE oMEBERKAEEARE
I Py D 38 2 B 7 LR

—RmE  AKREERREEETRST
SR o B 7O AN 5% [ T IED 369 2 T 45 L B A 5
PMEIKF - R EE W A EM T A H
b TR AVES - RE B BAF A REST
TEERTANFER AKBEMEYHZ
TEERMBRABIINGT
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 33.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(a) Categories of financial assets and
liabilities

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities recognised at the end of reporting periods
are categorised as follows. See notes 4(f)(i) and 4(f)
(iii) for explanations on how the category of financial
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

BREEREER DN FENE
()

(a) MBEEREEIE

REBRBEMRAERZVBEE
ENBENETEIBENT -AH
ERIAZDRUAZEREH
& 2 51 8 Z fR & B FEA()() B A(f)
(iii) °

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
e L —E—nE
T TR
Financial assets BMEEE
Loans and receivables: B3 e FRIE -
— Trade receivables —JEWE SRR 3,271 2,795
— Deposits and other receivables —1Ze REMEWKIA 7,442 137
Financial assets measured at AAFEEFEAEZD
fair value through profit or loss: WiBEE:
— Financial assets held for trading - RBEEENMBKEE 760,613 -
- Financial derivative contract —2RITEE L 75,266 -
Cash and cash equivalents HekZERIREEB 522,361 97,361
1,368,953 100,293
Financial liabilities g =R
At amortised cost: P
- Borrowings —-BE 40,245 -
— Amount due to ultimate holding — BN REERARRIE
company 4,798 -
- Loan from ultimate holding —REEEERAB ZER
company 877,040 -
— Accrued liabilities and —[EEr B E R E M E IR
other payables 2,398 1,812
924,481 1,812

Bestway International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group has interest-bearing assets in relation to
cash at banks carried at effective interest rates with
reference to the market. Since the Group’s borrowings
and loan from ultimate holding company are fixed-rates,
the Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from cash at
banks. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior year are considered to
be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysed below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for cash at
banks as at the end of the reporting period. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease is used as it represents the
management’s best estimate of the Group’s exposure
to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on its
variable-rate cash at banks, with all other variables held
constant.

If the interest rates of cash at banks had been 50 basis
points higher/lower, the Group's loss for the year would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$2,013,000
(2015: approximately HK$487,000) as a result of the
changes in interest rates.

A

HHERBEERQFERE

(4&)

(b)

A = B

MEEBRDIERTRTARFES
RenelmsiXEHmKez
gz

AEBEHBEE FRAZER
BeEBRNEABRZRITRS
HRAEENREERRE&RKE
R 2 ERBEERNE B
REBE N F X E R T ERIRR IR
TR - NEERE AL X H P
BE - BEREERYIIRNXE
B UKEBERTEREPEKR
S EN

AKEEBEFEN R ERTE
BAEABRZRE  LRALFHR
EXE e

FI E S BE S

NPT Z BURE TR s IR
RBIRITRE 2 FI XA MEE -
BRA LA TRES0EER - JIRR
BEEBYHAEEEF BN XRR
TREAZNREEAEEE 2R
% P 2 SR EERT Al - T PT A E Al
EHINRITTE -

W $RITIR S FIE 7 T RE50{EE
2 AREEMEEBBAIRD
N%2,013,0008 7L (ZE—HF :
#9487,000/8 7T ) * LTy FIFRE
BFTE
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group's
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The carrying
amounts of these financial assets presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position are net
of impairment losses. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not obtain collateral
from the customers.

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks.
The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because most of the Group’s bank deposits are
deposited with major banks located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Singapore.

The policies to manage credit risk have been followed by
the Group since prior year are considered to have been
effective.

Bestway International Holdings Limited
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group mainly operates and invests in Hong
Kong, Singapore, the PRC and Mongolia with most of
the transactions denominated and settled in HK$, US$,
RMB and MNT respectively. Other than the Singapore
subsidiary, no material foreign currency risk has been
identified for the monetary assets and liabilities in
Hong Kong, the PRC and Mongolia as they were largely
denominated in a currency same as the functional
currency of the Hong Kong, the PRC and Mongolian
entities to which these transactions related. The
Singapore subsidiary is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through its sales and purchases of commodity
products that are denominated in a currency other than
its function currency of US$. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are mainly RMB and HK$. The Group has
not entered into any derivative instrument to hedge the
foreign exchange exposures, however, the management
continuously monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Singapore subsidiary’s
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities other than its functional currency
of operation at the end of the reporting period is as
follows (2015:Nil):

HHEREERQAFETE

(#&)

(d)

S L B ()

TR B - ¥ A0 B /B X B LASH
KAEMNEEEERARELY

BEEMEABEONT (ZE—RF:
) :

Assets Liabilities
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE =i
FAET FET
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ_-ZT— <%
ZA=t—BLEE
RMB AR 228,855 (13,789)
HK$ BT 53,754 (26,456)
282,609 (40,245)

The policies to manage foreign current risk have been
followed by the Group since prior year are considered to
be effective.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group's loss for the year in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates arising
from the Singapore subsidiary mentioned above.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the Singapore subsidiary’s exposure to currency risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The stated changes represent the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the next reporting period. Results of
the analysis as presented in the below table represent an
aggregation of the effects on the Singapore subsidiary’s
profit or loss measured in its functional currency of USS$,
translated into HK$, at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.
As HK$ is currently pegged to US$, the management
considers that the exposure to exchange fluctuation in
respect of HK$ against US$ is limited and therefore the
Singapore subsidiary is primarily exposed to the foreign
currency risk arising from RMB. A positive/(negative)
numbers represented a decrease/(an increase) in loss in
2016 (2015: Nil).

HHERBEERQFERE
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(d)

SRR (&)
S BB 5T (A

P 2 BER N E IR G R L INEE
FRT—EARSHAIELRCEE
BE) o TRIRZ DI AERIEF N
B ERRIARLDREEB T E
2N E R (25 AR RN TR
EHRZERLMEB L) 25
FE -mNAETTIRE R THA
EEERAETHEEIT 2 IME
RENVAR o F Utk - ¥ hn KB 2 7
TRAZARESIENINERR -
E/(B)EBER-_Z-RFNHE
B\, (EMm) (ZE—HEF:
&) -

Increase/
(Decrease) Effect on
in foreign the Group’s loss
exchange rate for the year
HK$'000
SMEE =& HEAEEZ
2, CRd) FEBEXE
FET
For the year ended 31 March 2016 EHZE_-Z— <&
ZA=t-HLEFE
RMB against US$ AR HET 5% 10,753
(5%) (10,753)
(e) Liquidity risk (e) RBEZEMR

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
able to meet its obligation associated with its financial
liabilities. The Group's objective is to ensure adequate
funds to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities. Cash flows are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis. The Group will raise funds from the
realisation of its assets if required.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 33. BIBEAREERAFE;E
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) RBELEM (&)
At the end of each reporting period, the remaining REREER BBERURBENR
contractual maturity of the Group's financial liabilities ERVFIAEB I HBEEEZHT
which are based on undiscounted cash flows are EXREHBE BT
summaries below:
Total More than
contractual On demand 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted or within less than
amount cash flows 1 year 2 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERRER —FE
BREE ReRBEE RERI—FR BREBBME
FET FHET FHET FHET
31 March 2016 —E-XF
=A=+-—
Borrowings BE 40,245 40,245 40,245 -
Loan from ultimate R B ERIERR
holding company NAEIZER 877,040 934,053 39,467 894,586
Amount due to ultimate & & 4&4%E %
holding company NEFRIE 4,798 4,798 4,798 -
Accrued liabilities and FEEtaEREM
other payables ANES 2,398 2,398 2,398 -
924,481 981,494 86,908 894,586
31 March 2015 —E-HF
=B=+—H
Accrued liabilities and FEEtaEREM
other payables 1S 5RIA 1,812 1,812 1,812 -
(f)  Fair value risk (f) 2AFERR
The directors consider that the fair values of the Group’s EEZERAHNEHEe T AR
financial assets and financial liabilities are not materially EEANEE SASEYBEER
different from their carrying amounts because of the BEATERARRETEENE
immediate and short term maturity of these financial Ho

statements.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(9)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its financial
assets held for trading (note 15) and financial derivative
contracts measured at fair value (note 16) at the end of
the reporting period.

Listed equity securities held by the Group have
been chosen based on their growth potential and
are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations. The management also performed analysis
of the nature of market risk associated with the equity
securities held for trading, including discussion with
the investment advisors if applicable, and concluded
that the price risk is more prominent in evaluating
the market risk of this kind of investments. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles in
accordance with the limits set by the Group and located
in different jurisdictions.

Price sensitivity analysis

The policies to manage the price risk have been
followed by the Group and are considered to be
effective.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of
the reporting period for the Group’s financial assets
held for trading and financial derivative contracts.
A 10% increase or decrease is used as it represents
management’s assessment of the possible change
in price of the financial assets held for trading and
financial derivative contracts.

If the prices of the listed equity securities held by the
Group had been 10% higher/lower, the Group's loss
for the year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$76,061,000 as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial instruments held for trading.
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(4&)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(9)

(h)

Price risk (Continued)
Price sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of metal-related contract held by the
Group had been 10% higher/lower, the Group’s loss
for the year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$7,527,000 as a result of the changes in fair value of
financial derivative contract.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The Group followed HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures which introduce a three-level hierarchy
for fair value measurement disclosures and additional
disclosures about the relative reliability of fair value
measurements.

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into
three levels based on the relative reliability of significant
inputs used in measuring the fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(h)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset is categorised in its entirety is based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statements of financial position (2015: Nil)

33.

HHERBEERQFERE

(4&)

(h)

EMIENATERE
(4&)

MHEEEBTEBAZAFES
FBANZER HERERATERFE
BERZSZEBRBABEHED -

REEMBERIBRER(ZF -5
F: E) NERAFEFEZVBE
£l

are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: ENESBUTZATESR:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F1E $2/E £3E et
F&T FHET FHET FET
As at 31 March 2016 R=ZB-RF
=A=+-—H
Financial assets measured ZAF{EFEH
at fair value B s EE
Financial assets held BIEEE/
for trading Mg EE 760,613 - - 760,613
Financial derivative ERMITEEN
contract - 75,266 - 75,266
Total fair values N EBRE 760,613 75,266 - 835,879
The fair values of the listed equity securities classified REBEHR - FIBEEID RIBIEER

as financial assets held for trading are determined with
reference to the quoted market bid price available to
the relevant stock exchanges as at the end of reporting
period. Given that the relevant stock exchanges are
considered as active markets, the fair values of the listed
equity securities are grouped into Level 1.

The fair value of the financial derivative contract is
determined with reference to the quoted market bid
price of the metal-related products available in the
market as at the end of reporting period. Given that the
relevant market is not considered as an active market,
the fair value of the financial derivative contract is
grouped into Level 2.

There have been no significant transfers between level
1, 2 and 3 during the reporting period.
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34.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
ensure that it maintains an acceptable capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure
and make adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payables to shareholders,
issue new shares or raise and repay debts. The Group’s capital
management objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the current and previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total equity plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as the sum of the borrowings and loan from ultimate
holding company less cash and cash equivalents. The Group
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a acceptable level. The
gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:

34.

EAXEHE

AEBERNEENTIZARERERERH
BEMNEALE UXHHEEBEREER
mEREE

AEBEEGRNEREHEERRE LR
BRBRRAOBEPELRARE - BT X
HEERRE  AEBEHGABEIRNT TR
RS #BIHRAEEESREER
B-RAFERBEFE AEBEERA
AHER BRAEFEETMED-

AEBERAEERELEEEER HE
FRAEBBEFEGRUEZEENARETF
HoBEFRENEEERRBRERERRA
AMER Z BMBRE RFRREEE &
- AEBBNRBEEABLXERE
— AR AR -RIBEANEERE
HxmT

2016 2015

HK$"000 HK$'000

= ki —T—h%

FERT FHET

Borrowings B 40,245 -
Loan from ultimate holding company RERKEBRARZER 877,040 -
Total debt BEBER 917,285 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BBRENMERBELIESR (522,631) (97,361)
Net debt BEFEH 394,654 N/A 7~
Total equity ERARH 857,910 625,813
Total equity plus net debt ERBENEETFE 1,252,564 N/A 38 B
Gearing ratio EEBMEBHE 31.51% N/A 7~ i A
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35.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 8 April 2016, the Company, the auctioneer and the
vendor entered into an auction agreement, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to acquire and the
vendor agreed to sell certain distressed assets at the
cash consideration of RMB146,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$175,200,000). The distressed assets
represent all rights in relation to the non-performing
debts and the enforcement of the pledge of the
collaterals in connection with certain non-performing
debts owed by certain debtors, including the rights
to the proceeds recovered from the disposal of such
collaterals. Details of the transaction have been set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 12 April 2016.

On 28 April 2016, the ultimate holding company has
agreed to grant an unsecured revolving credit facility
amounting to approximately HK$2,000,000,000 in total
to the Group. The unsecured revolving credit facility
is interest bearing 4.5% per annum and is repayable
within eighteen months since the drawdown date.

On 5 May 2016, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company won the bid for acquisition of certain
assets, being the land and the land use rights, and
the buildings constructed thereon located in the
PRC at the cash consideration of RMB202,170,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$242,604,000). Details
of the transaction have been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 5 May 2016.
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35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(Continued)

On 23 May 2016, the Company and Hua Lien
International (Holding) Company Limited (“Hua Lien™)
entered into the memorandum of understanding,
pursuant to which Hua Lien intends to allot and
issue, and the Company intends to subscribe for,
3,700,000,000 subscription shares at the tentative
subscription price of HK$0.16 per subscription share. If
the possible subscription materializes, upon completion
of the possible subscription, the Company may in
aggregate be interested in approximately 55.30% of
the entire issued share capital of Hua Lien. Details of
the subscription arrangement have been set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 25 May 2016.

35. J[{REBHEEE &)
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36. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 3 June 2016.
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